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ROADCHEF LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORY
FOR THE PERIOD ENDEO 2 JANUARY 2022

The directors present their Svrategic Report for the 53 week period ended 2 January 2022 The comparative period was the year ended 27 December
2020

Review of the business

Princlpal activitles

Roadchef Limited (“the Company’} and is subsid.anes (logether “the Group”) operated 20 Molorway Service Areas over 28 sides of the molonvay in
the United Kingdom for the period ended 2 January 2022 The Group afso operated a 2 sided Service Area at Sutton Scolney on the A34 We do not
anticipate the princ:pal aclivities of the business to change i the foreseeable future

Change in ownership

On 17 Mareh 2022, 100% of the voung equity shares of Roadchef Tepco Limited, an i diate pasent pany, were acquired by MEIF 6 Range
Brdco Limited. As a result, on 17 March 2022 the uitimate controlling parly of the Company changed from Antin Infrastructure Panners Luxembourg
I S.arl 10 Macquarie European Infrastrycture Fund 6 SCSp Macquarie European Infrastructure Fund 6 SCSp is managed by the assel
management arm of Macquane Group Limited

Following this. on 7 Apré 2022 the Group repaid ils bank borrowings New bank boscowings of £270 Om have been obiained by an inlesmediate
parent company. which are secured over the assets of the Group and are repayabdle in 2027,

Flnanclal summary

The Group's result, whilst impacted by the coronavirus pandemic, is a significant improvement on the comparaiive period, and reflects the sirong
recovery that has been achieved throughout (he penod. Revenue of £180.9m for the penod ended 2 January 2022 is improved $8.4% on the
previous year, and is 91.4% of that achieved i the year previous 1o that, pre-pandemic, Earnings belfore interest, tax, depreciation and amontisation
("EBITDA") was £43.5m EBITDA is used as a key measure of the Group’s performance and operational effecliveness. The EBITDA achieved is
stated after Government grants and other assistance totaling £7 3m (27 December 2020 £17.4m})

Period ended Year ended

2 Janvary 27 December

2022 2020

£€'m £'m

Revenue 180.9 114.2

Adjusted operaling profit,

Operating profi (loss) 15.7 (20.0)
Exceptional items 1.0 34
IAS 19 pension expenses and assoclated cos1s 0.5 0.5
Adjusted operating profiV (loss) _11.2 (16.1)
Amortisation and depreciation 26.3 273
EBITOA 43.5 112
Profit/ (loss) belore taxation . 14.2 (37.5)

The Group has net assets of £26 7m {27 December 2020; £20,0m} and net current liabihilies of £17 2m {27 Derember 2020: £35.8m)

Business gnvironment and strategy
The lollowing narrative relates to the underlying trade of the Group which the directors consider to be the prmary drivers of the business.

The UK Motorway Service Area markel Is concentrated (n the hands of three major operators and several smaller operators. The Group operates
roadside service areas at 3{ key focations across the UK The Group's sites are | d at gic positions an the UK motorway network

In erdinary circumstances, there are appioximately 50 milon visits (o the Group’s sites in a year and 77% of these visits result in the visitor being
¢ d o a Ct Recent Nt (n the calering o'fering at key sies has proven Lo krprove the (evel of conversion.

The Group’s business strategies are as follows

« Service our customers in as friendly and effic.ent a manner as possible;

« Ensuie that the brand and services ihat the Group offers are what our customers want and Ihat the standards are what
they expecl or better:

« Ensure that products, staff and lills are available to serve customers:

« Close management of key perfarmance indicators, such as growth ¢n amenity building sales; and

« Compaetitively priced with:n the motorway service industry,



ROADCHEF LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 2 JANUARY 2022

Review of the business {continued)

tavesting in brands and services aligned to customer wants

that the ¢

Management beli

.

y and quality offered by well-knawn high sireet brands drives sales grawih

Over (he last several years, the Group has progressed through 3 multi-million pound developmeni plan of the Molorway Service Areas Management
has been committed to increasing the variely of offerings to its customers with new catering outlets, as well as enhancing the quality of experience
for customers through the refurbishment of existing oullets. Alongside this, manag it have i ted in enhancing the general amenity building
space and facilities throughout the estate.

Management's drive 10 add variety and choice of quality brands for customers has dbeen at the forefront of effarts in recent yeass, which intiuded the
opening of two Leon units during the year, al Chester and Watford Gap South. Leon has an emphasis on bringing cuslomers gocd tasting, healthy
fast focd and adds an exciling diversity to the Group's portfolio of catering oullets. :

Managemeni continue lo assess the suitability and success of the Group's offerings and will Iook to make furthar Irvestment i the year ahead

The board monitors progress on the Group slrategy and the individual strategic elements by reference to the following key performance indicators
{based upon the first 52 weeks of each period):

27 December Definition, hod of cafculation
2020, and analysis
{41.50)%[Year-on-year sales growth, including Drive Thry,
expressed as 3 percentage. The increase reflects a the
Group's tecovery from a comparative period that was
significantly impacted by the caronavirus pandemic.

2 January
2022

$9.3%

Growth in amenity bullding and drive thru
sales (%)

62.2% 60.5%|The amenily building gross margin Is the ratio of gross
profit to sales expressed as a percentage. The gross

margin is judged to be al a satisfaclory level

Gross margin in the emenity building and drive
thru (%)

Amenity bullding and drive thru transactions 23.2 18.2|This is the actual number of ransactions fecorded in
(m) the Group's setail and cotefing outlets. The increase
reflects the Group's recovery from a comparative
period thalt was signilicantly wmpacted by the
coronavirus pandemic.

£5.78[This is the sale of goods divided by the number of
transactions The average spend per transaction has
increased duting the year, helged by an increase in
leisure  travel, vath typically a larger average
transaction value.

Spend per transaction (€) £6.41

"3

In addition to the amenity building sales discussed above. the Group has sig 1L cevenues g ted from the provision of services and rental
income from forecounts. Revenue from the provision of services includes revenue lram hotels, parking and gaming.




ROADCHEF LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINVED)
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 2 JANUARY 2022

Principal risks and uncertalnties

Coranavirus pandemic v
The Group has historically generated positive cash flow with consisiently sirong revenue growth year-on-year

The emergence of the global coronavirus pandemic had a serious, shon-term impact on the Group's performance.

Fellowing the UK Government’s impositon of fockdown in March 2020, the business was granted an essential status by the Government and the
Group's sites remaired open, however with Emited offerings and a significanlly reduced labour lorce, 10 provide a crucial and safe service lo
motorisls on essenlial journeys. There was a significant decline in footfall and revenue dunng this time given the sharp drop in traffic on the UK
strategic roads network.

Following (ha ending of the first lockdown, traffic and sales recoverad strangly, reaching 75% of normal levels during August 2020, Whilst furthes
local and natonal colonavirus restrictions continued to impact trade in 2020. conditions were not as adverse as the first UK wide lockdown of March
2020. helped by the continued operation of our Costa Coffee and McDonald’s offers, albeil on reduced hours. The Group's revenue for the year
ended 27 December 2020 was reduced by 42% compared (o the previous year.

With a further national lockdown imposed in January 2021, trade continued to be impacted i the eary pant of 2021. However, as resticlions were
lihed, traffic and revenue rebounded strongly and immedsately. wilh revenue reaching over 110% of normal pre-pandemic lavels during August 2021,
and increased 58 4% for the penad as a whole, compared to the previous year

The availabixty of support from the Government and key suppliers, such as the Coronavisus Job Retention Scheme. enabled the Group to continue
trading through the peak of the crisis without the need of any additional funding suppont Liquidity has remained healthy and the majority of the
Group's employees have been telained, which has been key to provide a platform for the Group’s recovery

As a result of the trad:sg enviranmem early in 2021, a waiver was issued by the Group's ienders in respect of the financlal covenants and other
potential default events up to and including 33 December 2021,

Enancial ovtlook

it is Management's vigw that the Group will experience continued sevenue growth in 2022, with underlying perfermance exceeding pre-pandemic
levels.

Given current forecasts of EBITDA, extending to a period in excess of 12 months {rom the date of approval of these financial statements.
Management do not foresee any Issues with hquidity or potential breaches of financial covenants. with a significant headroom,

Management are satisfied that 3 going basis of preparation for the fi ial femains appropriate.

Oriher risks:

Competition: There are significant barrigrs to entry for the cosistructan of new molonway seqvice areas, resulling in a low levet of compelition risk.
Management actively monitor planning applicatons for motorway service areas on the UK network and co not currenlly envisage any matenal
increase to the number of competitor sites.

Energy pricing: The Group's expendure on utilites in the pernod was £5.5m (27 December 2020, £4.6m) Whilst 8 portion of the Group's utility
costs ate on a fixed (artf for a periad of time. volatility yn energy prices are expected o result in 3t [2ast a £3.0m of price related increases in the year
ahead Management monitor energy pricing closely and seek to adopl an oplimum buying stralegy with assistance of an energy broker. Management
also seek to enhance energy efficiency across the Group's operations

Fi tal risk [] 1t polici

The Group's pringipal { ! instruments prise cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, trade and other payables. fixed and
floating rate borrowings, leases, interest rate swaps and equity insbuments.

Discussion of the risks associated w.th these financial instruments 13 inciuced w note 27 10 the financial statements.



ROADCHEF LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 2 JANUARY 2022

Capital management

The Group's objectives, when managing capital, aie to saleguard the Group's ability to conlinge as a going concern in arder (o provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and 16 maintain an optimal capital structure 1o reduce the cost of capital ln otder to maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group can adjust the amaunt of dividends paid to shareholders, return sapital to shareholders, issue new shares or
sell assets to reduce debl. Covenants attached to the Group's borrowings do not require consideration of capital management other than the
pravigion of an equity cure, by means of increases in capital, against what v.ould othenwise conslitute a breack in financial covenant.

Nz changes 10 the Group's capital have been required 10 manage financial covenanis in edher the cusient o prios period

Section 172 statement
A description of how the Board have given regard to matters sel out in secuor: 172{1)a) to (f} of the Companies Act 2006 whitsi performing their
duties is given in the Directors Repon,

On behalf of the board

(}W I:',{v— - //

s

J Muirhead
Director

Date: 22 September 2022



ROADCHEF LIMITED REGISTERED NUMBER 01713437

DIRECTORS' REPORT
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 2 JANUARY 2022

The dirgctors present thew repont angd audited consohdated financial statements for the period ended 2 January 2022.
The Company is a private company hmited by shares and s incorporated and domiciled in the UK

Directors
The directors of the Company who were in office dusing the period and up to the date of signing the financial statements were

M Fox

t Bunnjappamted 1 October 2021)
| McKay

R Tindale

J Muithead

D Wade

Resuits and dividends
The results for the period are set oul on page 12. The drectors do not recommand the paymenl of 3 dividend (27 December 2020 £nd).

Future developments

The prancipal activilies, orgarssational structure and debt structure of the Group are not anlicipated to change in the for ble fulure. M:

plans 1o develop the existing porttolo of Molorway Serv ce Areas, and will explore further opporunities as the Group recovers from the coronavirus
pandemic.

Corporate Governance

Section 172

The Board recagnises that good governance helps the business implement its strategy. protect sha1eho‘der value and minimise risk and are
commutted 10 maintaining high standards of corporate governance. The Board's corporate governance is parnt of the overall governance lramewark of
the Group and is direcled 1n a manner which is responsidle and in accordance with high standards of hanesty, transparency, and accountabilty,
whilst having regard to the malters se1 owt in section 172{1}3) to {f) of the Companies Act 2006, acting in good {aith whilst promoting the success of
the Graup.

Stakeholder involvement

Enaagenient with shareholders

Regutar and vansparent tnteraction is promoted with shareholders. The Group's board of direclors includes cep! ives from the Group's
principal and majority sharehgldet The Board meets elevan limes per year to discuss lhe gerformance and stategic disection of the Group and
approve significant business decisions Relevant business decisions and other topics of discussion wilh shareholders include:

- Remuneratign poticy,

- Board composit:on and other key appointments;
- Invesiment appraisats!

- Significant suppher agieements:

- Yax strategy;

- Significant business nsks and opportunities: and
- Any other s.gnificant matlers thal may arise.

The Board also malntans a long-term business plan which is updated and shared with the Group’s sharehotders on a quarterly basis, providing a
regular update on the tong-term financia® weliteing of the Group.

Ennagement with employees

The Board places considerable vaiue on the invol of its employ ard continues o keep them informed on matters affecling them as
employees and on the various factass affecting the performance of the Group. Emplayees, of their representatives, are consulted on a reguiar basis
through a series of Joint Consuliative Committees from site level to Suppent Office $0 that the views of employ can be dered in making
decisions Ihat are kel to affect their interests. The Chief € ive Officer also ilors an ema? address named ‘Tell Mark” which is pramoted to
all employees and enables them to raise ideas or concerns directly with him at any time. The Board makes use of an at least annual employee
engagement survey (o collect the views and opinions of its employees. The Board 3ls0 encourages all leve’s of staff to fuffil thetr own potentiat and
offers interna) lraining, secondmenl and promotior. opportunilies to enable this. The Group is one of the few hospitality businesses with a Gold
Investors in People accredi ‘ng the excepti and commi (hat the business maintains as an employer and afso
participates tn the Best Compames survey enabling employees (o provide feedback directly to Best Companies which provides a ratirg of the
Graup’s performance relalive 10 other gimifar scale osganisations in the UK. During 2022, the Group has been placed seventh on the overall national
list with Best Companies, for the best big companies 10 work for In the UK, and pfaced fourth fot the best companies 1o wark {of In the leisure and
hospiality industry.

€ ment with custom
The Group actively encourages feedback from customers through its “Tell Roadchef’ prog which enables cu s 10 provide i di

feedback on their experience. The Group’s Repulation com system collates customer feedback from Tell Roadchel, social media, ontne reviews
and other sources meaning customers have a wide cho'ce of channels through which 1o commun’cate and the Group receives near real time
feedback This ensures that issues can be quitkly rectified and outstanding service from team $ can be recognised pramply. The Board aiso
works closely with brand partners to ensure the Group fully utkses their feedback sy ing the Group ma:ntains consister
standards of service, quality and customer sat:sfaction across its branded outlets




ROADCHEF LIMITED

DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 2 JANUARY 2022

Srakohnldar i 1 p f )
invol [(

Engaqement with other stakeholders
Other stakeholders groups primarily include supplers, lenders and charity pantners, as well as transport mlrastruclwe bod-es key uade bodies and
others. The Board has n place key relationship panners from its management team to offer timely and resp ion wh f which

ensures that these siakeholders are kept informed of all significant business decisions that may affect (hem and are able to raise ideas and concems
vith ease.

Disabled employees

Applications for employ { by disabled p are always fully considered, bearing in mind the aptitudes of the applicant concerned. In the event
of r bers of staff ing disabled, every effort Is made to ensure that their employment wilh the Group gontinues and that appropriate training
is atranged. It is the policy of the Group that the training, career development and promolion of disabled persons should, as far as poss:ble, be
identicat with that of other employees.

Equal oppontunities

The Group is an equal opportunilies employer. its palicy is o ensure thal recruitrment, selection, training, development and promotion pracedures
result in no applicant or employee receiving less favourable and discriminatory treatment on the grounds of sex, age race. nationality, creed, ethnic
origin, disability, sexua) orientation, marital status or by condilions or requiiements which cannot be shown to be justifiable.,

Streamiined Energy & Carbon Reporting
The Group is commitied to ensuring the business operates in @ sustainable way, minimising the environmental impact of the business and
pioneeting new and innovative ways of supporting this.

The Group has taken measures in recent years to reduce its greenhouse gas (GCG) emi 'S, SUCh 3s Introducing solar panels to most of d's s:tes
providing green power 10 the business. This alone has reduced carbon emissians by 480 (onnes per year, Other measures taken during the period to
reduce the group's cardon impacl include the installation of more energy efficient LED hghting for internal, external ang signage. replacing the less
efficcent fluorescent style lighting, as well as replacing end of use assels with a more energy efficient equivatent, such as ait handling units 8 hot
water boilers The Group also ensures that 100% of electricity purchased is from renewable sources

The Group has also been involved in a number schemes o divert the companies waste away from landfi, for wh.ch the group has recently achieved
zero waste to landhill status

Details of energy consumptlion and emissions for the Group are gven below

Period ended Year ende¢
2 January 27 December
2022 2020
kwh kWh
Energy consumption used to calculate emnissions: 40,608,521 34813913
Energy consumption break down (kWh}
Gas 5.965.072 5.272.315
Electricity 32,521,623 2786171476
Trangport Fuel 2,121,826 2,024,422
Perlod ended Year ended
2J y 27 Decemb
2022 2020
Tonnes of C02 Tonnes of CO2
equivalent equvalent
Emissions from combustion of gas (Scope 1} 1,208 1067
Emissions from purchased electricity {Scope 2) 8.905 6.439
Emissions lrom business travel whese company is responsble for the puschasing of fuel (Scope 3) 586 . 558
Total gross emisst in metric t CO2e 8,699 8.064
——
Intensity ratio: tonnes of CO2e per £m of sales 48.1 708
Intensity ratio: tonnes of C02e per employee 29 25

Prepared following the 2018 HM Government Environmental Reporting Guxdeilﬂes and using the 2021 & 2020 UK Government's Conversion Faclors
for Company Reporting.



ROADCHEF LIMITED

DIRECTQRS' REPORT {CONTINUED)
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 2 JANUARY 2022

Going concern

The Group's business aclivities, financial risk policigs and exposures. together with the faciors 5kely 1o affect ils fulure devetopment, parfarmance
and positicn are sel out in the Strategic Repont The Group’s key sensilivity is the level of trading it achieves wiich is dependent on a number of
factors. including fuel pnces and the wider economy Trading is aclively monitored by the board of directors through the use of daily and weekly sales
statistics. This level and frequency of information ensures that the boasd is able to make quick short-term decisions to drive volyma growth or to
formutate more long-term sirategic decisions

The Group aims o mainigin sufficien availabla cash at any point to manage its day-to-day working capital requicements. In addilian, the Graup has
leases and parent company debl which it uses to finance the Group’s aclivities. On 7 April 2022 she Group repaid its bank borrowings. New bank
borrowings of £270.0m have been obtained by an intermediate parenl company, which are secured over the assets of the Group and are repayable
in 2027.

The impact of Coronavirus on the Group is discussed in the Strategic Repont. The Group's forecasts and projeclions, taking accousnt of reasanable
possible changes in trading performance, inckding a severe bul plausible downiside scenario :n L.ght of the coronavitus pandemle, shaw that the
Group expects to operale within the level of its curcent facitles and lo meel mimmum cavenant req.ifements i respect of these factiities. The Group
has been granled a waiver of all financial cavenants up 10 and including December 2021,

The Group has nel assels of £26.7m {27 December 2020: £20.0m) and net curcent liabilities of £17.2m (27 December 2020; £358m) The Group
has received written confimation of suppart from intermed.ate parent companies to assist in meeting liabilites as and whe# they fall dye. The
directors are of the opinion that the Group has sufficient funds to conlinue in operational existence fos at least 12 months from the date of approval of
the financial slalements. For this reason. thay continue 10 8dopt the going cancern basis in preparing the financial staiements.

Directors’ liability insurance and Indemnity R

The Group has granted an indemnity to ene or more of its directors against liabiity in respect of praceedings brought by third parties, subject (6 the.
conditions set out in the Companigs Act 2006 Such quatifying thitd party indemnity provision remains the same as at the dale of approving the
Directors’ Report.

Disectors® asto of 10 the auditors
The direciors who were members of the board at the time of approving the Directors' Repont are lsted on page 5 Having made enquiries of fellow
directors and of the Group's auditors, each of these ditectors canfirms thai:

« To the best of each directors’ knowiedge and betel, there is no information (that is, information needed by the Group's auditors tn sonnection with
g their repon) of which the Group's auditors are unaware: and

« Each director had taken all the sleps a dwector might reascnably be expecied to have taken 10 be aware of relevant audut informaton and (o
8stablish that the group auditors were aware of that infosmation.

Independent auditors
fn accardance with secuan 485 of the Companies Act 2006, a resclution ing that P copess LLP be inted auditoss of the
Company will te pul Lo the Annua! General Meeting

On behaH of the board

et

JMulrhead
Oirector

Date: 22 September 2022



ROADCHEF LIMITED

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 2 JANUARY 2022

Statement of direcrors’ responsibiiities In pect of the fi fal 1
The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financal statements in accordance with applisable law and regutation.,

Company law requires the direclors to prepare financial statements for each financial year, Under thal faw the direclors have prepared the group
financial statements in accordance with international accounting standards in confarmity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and the
company financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generaly Accepled Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Acceunting Standards.
comprising FRS 101 "Reduced Oisclasure Fe K", and licable taw),

Under company law, directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a lrue and fas view of the state of
affaits of the group and company and of the profit or 1oss of the group for that pericd. In preparing the financral stalemerds, the dectors are required
to:

* select suitablo accgunting policies and then apply them consistently;

» state whether app*cable international accounting standards in conformity with the req of the Companies Act 2606 have been foillowed for
the group financial statements and United Kingdom Accounting Standards. comgprising FRS 101 have been lofowed for (he wy fi i
statements, sublect to any dep disclosed and explained in the financial statements,

« make judgements and accounting esli that are ble and prudent; and

* prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate 10 presume that the group and company will continue in
business

The direclors are responsidle for safeguarding the assets of the group and company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the preventon and
detection of {raud and other irregularities

The duectors are also respansile for keeping adequale accounling records that are sufficient to show and explain the group’s and company's
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the group and company and enable them to ensure ihat the
financiat statements comp'y vath the Campanies Act 2006,

Dlrectors’ confirmations
In the case of each director in office at the dale the directors’ repon s approved

+ 80 far as the director 1s aware. there is no relevant audil information of which the group’s and company's auditors are unaware; and
« they have (aken all the sleps that they ought to have taken as a director in order to make themseives aware of any televant audit information and to
estabiish that the group’s and company's auditors are aware of that information

On behalf of the board

OLM o s A :

J Muirhead
Director

Date: 22 September 2022



Independent auditors’ report to the members of Roadchef
Limited

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

In our opinion:

» Roadchef Limited's group financial statements and company financial statements (the “financial statements”) give a true and fair view of
the state of the group's and of the company’s affairs as at 2 January 2022 and of the group’s profit and the group’s cash flows for the
period from 28 December 2020 to 2 January 2022;

« the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with international accounting standards in conformity with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006;

+ the company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 101 “Reduced Disclosure Framework”, and applicable law); and

» the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the financial statements, included within the Reports and. Consolidated Financial Statements (the “Annual Repont”), which
comprise: the Consolidated and Company Balance Sheets as at 2 January 2022; the Consolidated Income Statement and Consolidated
Statement of Other Comprehensive income, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement, and the Consolidated and Company Statements of
Changes in Equity for the period then ended; and the notes to the financiat statements, which include a description of the significant
accounting policies.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“ISAs (UK)") and applicable law. Our responsibilities
under ISAs {UK) are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence ‘

We remained independent of the group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements
in the UK, which includes the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements,

Conclusions relating to going concern

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditians that, individually or
collectively, may cast significant doubt on the group's and the company's ability 1o continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve
months fram when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors’ use of the going concerm basts of accounting in the preparation
of the financia} statements is appropriate.

However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this conclusion is not a guarantee as to the group's and the company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

Qur responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are dascribed in the relevant sections of this report,

Reporting on other information

The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report other than the financial statements and our auditors’ report
thereon, The direclors are responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information
and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in this report, any form of assurance
thereon.



Independent auditors’ report to the members of Roadchef
Limited (continued)

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is matenally inconsistent with the financial stalements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. If we identify an apparent material inconsistency or materiat misstatement, we are required to perform procedures
to concluds whether there is a material misstatement of the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. if, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report based on these responsibilities.

With respect to the Strategic report and Directors' Repon, we also considered whether the disclosures required by the UK Companies Act
2006 have been included.

Based on our work undertaken in the course of the audit, the Companies Act 2006 requires us also 1o report certain opinions and matters as
described below.

Strategic report and Directors' Report

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audil, the information given in the Strategic report and Directors' Report
for the period ended 2 January 2022 {s consistent with the financial statements and has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirements.

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and company and their environment obtained in the course of the audit, we did not
identify any material misstatements in the Strategic report and Directors' Repon.

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit

Responsibllities of the directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors' Responsibilities, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements in accordance with the applicable framework and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. The directors are also
responsible for such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directars are responsible for assessing the group’s and the company’s ability to continue as a going
concemn, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the group or the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic altemative but to do so.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our cobjectives are 10 obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opihion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements,

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulatiens. We design procedures in line with our
responsibilities, oullined above, 10 detecl material misstatements in respact of irregujarities; including fraud. The extent to which our
procedures are capable of detecting irreguiarities, including fraud, is detailed below.

Based on our understanding of the group and industry, we identified that the principal risks of non-compliance with laws and regulations
related to employment laws and regulations, health and safety legislation and government grants (including the Coronavirus Job Retention
Scheme), and we considered the extent to which non-compliance might have a material effect on the financial statements. We also
considered those laws and regulations that have a direct impact on the financial statements such as lax compliance legislation and the
Companies Act 2006. We evaluated management's incentives and oppontunities for fraudulent manipulation of the financial statements
(including the risk of ovemide of controls), and determined that the principal risks were related to the posting of inappropriate journal entries
and management bias in accounting estimates. Audit procedures performed by the engagement team included:
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Roadchef
Limited (continued)

* Enquiry of management and those charged with govermance around actual and potential litigation and claims and any instances of non-

compliance with laws and regutations, and fraud;
* Inspecting correspondence and discussion with legal advisors in respect of actual or potential litigation;
« Reviewing minutes of meetings of those charged with governance; :
e Testing Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme claims back to bank receipts and submitted claim forms. For a sample of employees we
also reperformed the calculation of amounts claimed and sought evidence of the eligibitity for those employees;

« Testing journals posted to revenue and expenses that have unusual account combinations, in particular those which manipulate revenue

and EBITDA;

¢ Challenging and auditing assumplions and judgements made by management in their significant accounting estimates and judgements

given the potential risk of management bias; and

+ Reviewing financial statement disclosures and testing to supponing documentation to assess compliance with applicable laws and

regulations.

There are inherent imitations in the audit procedures described above. We are less likely to become aware of instances of non-compliance
with laws and regulations that are not closely related to events and transactions reflected in the financial statements. Also, the risk of not
detecling a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one resulting from error, as fraud may involve deliberate

concealment by, for example, forgery or Intentional misrepresentations, or through co'lusion.

A fuher dascription of our responsibiliies for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC's website at:

www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibifities. This description forms part of our auditors' report.

Use of this report

This repon, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company’s members as a body in accordance with Chapter 3 of
Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for any
other purpose or lo any olher person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our

prior consent in writing.
Other required reporting

Companies Act 2006 exception reporting
Under the Companles Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in cur opinion:

+ we have not obtained all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

« adequate accounting records have not been kept by the company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from branches

ot visited by us; or
* certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or
« the company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and retums.

Wae have no exceptions to repont arising from this responsibitity.

—_—\

Steven Kentish (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
Birmingham

22 September 2022
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ROADCHEF LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 2 JANUARY 2022

Revenue

Cosl of sales

Gross profit
Adminisirative expenses:

Before exceptional items
Exceptional items

Qther operating income - g 1 grants
Operating profit! (loss)
Loss on disposal of property. plant and equipment

Exceptional flinance f {costs)

Finance income

Finance costs

ProfiVf {loss) before taxation
Taxation

Peafil {loss) far the financlal period

The income statement has been prapared on the basis that all operations are conbinuing operations

Perlod ended Year ended

2 January 27 December

Note 2022 2020
£'m £'m

3 180.9 1142
(60.7) (39.8)

120.2 744
{108.4) (1oL
6 {1.0) (3.4)
{107.4) (105.1)

7 29 10.7
157 (20.0)

(0.3) an

" 0.S (0.7)
12 8.5 -
13 {10.2) (15.1)
14.2 (37.5)

14 (10.2) 26
30 4.0 {349)




ROADCHEF LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 2 JANUARY 2022

Prafi’ (loss) for the financial period

itemns that will not be rectassified ta the incame statement:

Actuarial gains/ (losses) on pension schemes

IFRIC 14 penslon scheme adjustment

Taxation on components of other comprehenswe income/ (expense}
Total other comprehensive incoma/ {expense) for the period

Total comprehansive income! (expense) for the period

Note

30

31
3
14

Period ended Year ended
2 Janvary 27 December
2022 2020
£'m £m
4.0 (34.9)
29 (16)
0.5 (0 1)
o.n 02
2.7 (1.5)
6.7 {36.4)




ROADCHEF LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

AS AT 2 JANUARY 2022
2 January 27 December
Note 2022 2020
£'m £m
Assets
Non-current assets
Intangible assels 15 21 2.4
Property, plant and equipment 16 3248 3416
Employee benefit scheme surplus 31 58 1
Other assets 18 3.0 438
3357 3499
Current assets
Other assets 18 0.2 -
lnventories 19 33 29
Oebtors - amounts falling due within one year 20 11.6 8.4
Cash and cash equivalents 21 30.4 16.4
45.% 27.7
Total assets 381.2 377.6
Llabllities
Current liabllities
Creditars - amounis falling due within one year 22 (59.8) (577)
Loans and borrowings 24 0.7) (51)
Other provisions 25 1.4) .
Deferred revenue 26 {0.7) 0.7}
(62.6) (63.5)
Non-cureent llabllities
Loans and borrowings 24 {256.3) (255.2)
Other provisions 25 - (4.3)
Derivative financial liabiliti 23 {0.6} {8.9)
Defarres revenue 28 (7.3) (8.0)
Oeferred tax liabities 14 (27.7) (17.7}
(291.9) {294.1)
Totat habllities {354.5) (357.6)
Net assets 26.7 200
Equity
Called up ordinary shares 29 341 34.1
Capital reserve 30 0.2 02
Revaluation reserve 30 99.1 104.4
Accumulated losses 30 {106.7) (118 7}
Total equity 26.7 20.0

The financial slatements on pages 12 to 55 were approved by the doard of directors and authorised for issue on 22 September 2022 and wese

signed on:ts behalf

(}W thon A

J Muirhead
Diractor

The notes on pages 18 to 55 are an inlegra! pan of these financial statements



ROADCHEF LIMITED

COMPANY BALANCE SHEET

AS AT 2 JANUARY 2022
2 January 27 December
Note 2022 2020
£m €m
Assets
Non-current assets
Intangible assets 15 1.2 1.5
Propenty. plant and equipment 16 1.5 1.5
Investments in subsidiaries 17 3028 3028
Derivative financial assets .3 . -
305.5 3058
Current assets
Debiors - amounts tailing due within one year 20 516 50.9
Cash ard cash equivalents 21 5.2 27
56.8 536
Total assets 362.3 359.4
Llabilties
Current liabilities
Creditors - amounts falling due within one year 22 {107.2) (93 3}
Loans and borrowings 24 {0.4) {4.5)
(107.6) {97.8)
Non-current liabilities
Loans and borrowings 24 (121.5) {126.4)
Derivative financiat habilites 23 {0.6) (8.9)
{128.1) (135.3)
Total liabilities {235.7) (233.1)
Net assets 126.8 126.3
Equity
CaTed up ordinary shares 28 M1 341
Retained earnings 30 92.5 922
Total equity 126.6 126.3

The Company has not presented its own income slatement, as permilted by section 408 of the Companies Act 2006. The profit for ihe financia! year
deall with in the financial statements of the parent company, Roadche! Limited. vzas £0.3m (27 Oecember 2020: toss of £12 7m).

The financial slatements on pages 12 lo 55 were approved by the board of directors and authonsed for issue on 22 September 2022 and swere

signed on its behalf

/4
J-,“_v, et /’
—

J Muirhead
Director

Registered Number 01713437

The notes on pages 18 to 55 are an integral part of these hinancial statements.



ROADCHEF LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 2 JANVARY 2022

Calied up Revaluation Accumulated Total
Note ordinary shares Capital reserve reserve losses equity
£m £m £'m £'m £m
Group
At 29 December 2019 341 0.2 109.7 {87.0) 57.0
Change in accounting policy - - N (0.6} (0 6}
At 30 December 2019 (adjusted balance) kN 0.2 109.7 (87.6) 56.4
Loss for the financial year . - - (349) (34 9)
Other comprehensive expense - - (1.5} {15)
Reserve tansfer - - (5.3) 5.3 -
At 27 December 2020 34.1 0.2 104.4 (118.7) 20.0
Profu for the financial period 30 - - ¢ 4.0 LX)
Other comprehensive income 30 - - - 27 27
Reserve transfer 30 . . (5.3 53 -
At 2 January 2022 34.1 0.2 99.1 {106.7) 26.7
Called up
ordinary Retained Total
Note shares earnings equity
£'m £'m £'m
Company
At 29 Oecember 2019 341 104.9 139.0
Loss for the financial year - (12.7) (127)
At 27 December 2020 341 92.2 126.3
Profit for the financial period 30 . 0.3 03
Al 2 January 2022 34.1 92.5 126.6
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ROAOCHEF LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 2 JANUARY 2022

Net cash inflow from operating activities

Investing activities

Purchase of intangible assets

Purchase of property. plant and equipment
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment

Net cash outflow from | Ing activith

Financing activities

interest paid

interest element of fease payments
Repayment of capital element ol leases
Repayment of borrowings

Parent entity repayments

Naw borrowings

Issue cosls of barrowings

Net cash {outflow)! Inflow from financing activities

{nerease in cash in the period

Cash and cash equivalents brought forward

Cash and cash equivalents carried forward

17

Period ended Year ended
2 Janvary 27 December
Note: 2022 2020
£€m £m
38 386 6.4
15 (0.3} {0.6)
18 (8.8) (8.3)
0.2 -
(8.9) (8.9)
{10.7) (8.3)
0.2) 0.2)
39 (1.0) (2.0)
39 (5.0) (0.3)
39 . .
1.2 135
- (0.1)
{(15.7) 2.6
14,0 01
ral 164 16.3
2 ’ 30.4 16.4




ROADCHEF LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 2 JANUARY 2022

1 Accounting policies

Roadche! Limiled is a private company limiled by shares that is incorporated and demicded in the United Kingdom. The address of ils
registered office is Roadchef House. Norton Canes MSA, Betly's Lane, Norton Canes. Cannock, Staffordshire, WS 11 9UX, England

Basis of preparation
The financial have been prep for the period ended 2 January 2022 The comparalive period was the year ended 27 December
2020.

The Group financial statements have been prepated in accordance with international accounting siandards i conformity with the requirements
of the Companies Act 2006. and the Company financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Financial Reperting Standards 101
‘Reduced Disclosure Framework' {FRS 101). Accounting policies have been applied consistenily

The financial statements have been prepared under the histoncal cost convention, with the exception of derivative financial instruments which
are staled at market value. The principal accounting policies are set out befow.

The Company has taken ad ge of the following disclosure exemptions under FRS 101:

(a) the requirements of IFRS 7 Financial Instcuments: Disclasuces:

(b) the requirements of paragraphs 10{d), 16. 38 A to D, 111, and 134 1o 136 of IAS 1 P ion of Financial S!

{c) the requirements of paragraphs 38 of IAS 1 Preseniation of Financia! S 1o present comparalive information in respect of
paragraph 79{aXiv) of IAS 1:

{d) the requirements of IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows;
{e) the requirements of paragraph 17 of IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures :

(f) ine requirements in IAS 24 to disclose related party rransactions entered into between tvo or more members of 3 group, provided that any
subsidiary which is a panty to lhe lransaction is wholly oaned by such a member;

(9) the requirements of paragraphs 30 and 31 of IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Esiimales and Enrors: anc

{h) the reqe of paragraphs 91-99 of IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement .

(i) The reguirements of the second sentence of paragraph 110 and paragraphs 113(a). 114, 115, 118, 119(a) 1o (c). 120 (o 127 and 129 of IFRS
15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers .

Capital management

The Group's objectives, when managing capital, are to safeguard the Group's abilily to continue as 3 going concern in order to provide returns
for shareholders and benefits for other stakehoid and to mai an oplimal capilal structure (o reduce the cost of capital In order to
maintain or adjust the capital siructure, the Group can adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue
new shares or sell assets to reduce debl. Covenants attached o the Group's borrowings do not require consideration of capital management
ather than the provision of an equity cure. by means of increases in capila), against what would otherwise constilute a breach n financial
covenant.

Golng concern

The Group's business acuvities, financial risk policies and exposures, logether with the factors hkely to affect its future development.
performance and position are sel oul in the Strategic Repon. The Group's key sensitivity is the level of rading it achieves which is dependent
on a number of factors, including fuel prices and the widar ecoromy. Trading is actively monitored by the board of directors through the use of
daily and weekly sales statistics. This level and frequency of information ensures that the board is able to make quick shortderm decisions 1o
drive volume growth or to formulate more long-term sirategic decisions.

The Group aims to maintain sufficient avadable cash at any point to manage its day-10-day working capital requi In addition, the Group
has leases and parent company debt which it uses 10 finance the Graup’s activities. On 7 April 2022 the Group repaid ils bank borrowings. New
bank borrowings of £270.0m have been obtaingd by an intermediale parent company. which are secured over Lhe assets of the Group and are
repayable in 2027,

The impact of Coranavirus on the Group is discussed in the Stralegic Report. The Group's forecasts and projections, taking account of
reasonable possibla changes in trading performance, including a severe bul ptausible downside scenario in light of the coronavirus pandemic,
show that the Group expects lo operate within the tevel of its current facilities and to meet minimum covenant requirements in respect of these
facilities. The Group has been granted a waiver of all financial covenants up to and including December 2021

The Group has net assets of £26.7m (27 December 2020: £20.0m) and net current fiabitties of £17.2m {27 December 2020: £35.8m) The
Group has ived written confi ian of support from intermediale parent companies to assist in meeting liabdilities as and when they fall due.
The direclors are of the opinion that the Group has sufficient funds to continue in operational existence for at teast 12 months lrom the date of
approval of the financial statements. For this reason, they continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the fi i Is.




ROADCHEF LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 2 JANUARY 2022

1 Accounting policies (continued}

Basis of consolidation
The Group financial statements cansolidate the financial statements of Roadchef Limited and its subsidiary undertakings for the period ended 2
lanuary 2022 Acquisitions are accounted for under the acquisition method, The comparative perlod was the year ended 27 December 2020.

Goodwill *

Business combigations are accoumled for using the acquisition method. Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary undenaxing is the
differente betwesn the fax value of the consideration paid and the fair value of the assets and habilities acquired. Positive goodwill is
capitalised and tested annuatly lor irmpairment foss with reference to the cash-generating umts to which it has been atiocaled

Revenue

Revenue consists of the amounts received from customers o the UK from the Group's continung activity, excluding Value Added Tax, As
detailed in note 3. revenue on catefing. grocery retan and hotel sales is recogmsed when when goods are transferred to the customer and
performance obhgations mei.

Deferred revenue. being advantes received frum various had parues » raspect of lease scentives, 15 amortised 10 revenus over the peiod of
each agreement

interest and finance costs

Interest on foans drawn specifically (or new develop s, Incurred up to the date of p: ! ion, is 1 d as pan of the cost of
construction. Financing costs associaled with new borrowings are recognised in the income statement over the term of the borrowings at a
conslant tate on the carrying amount Where borrowings are refinanced, and it is concluded that this represents a refinancing rather than debt
modification, any unamortised transaction costs are expensed immediately to the income sialement as an excepti finance exp!

Finance costs represent the difference between the total amount of the payments that will have to be made in respect of the borrowing
instrument and the fair value of the consideration received on (he issue of the instrument after deduction of costs that have been incutred and
which are direclly associated walh the issue of that instrument and which would not have arisen had the instrument not been issued

Vendor allowances

The Group receives vanous lyp2s of vendor allowances. These take the form of upirent payments such as lump sum payments of prepaid
amounts, rebates, in the form of cash or cred:ts, and other forms of payments These amounts are shawn 3s a reduction in the cost of sales as
the Group becomes entited to them.

Costs of devel and p pening exp
External cosls of devetop: are capi d if the cost can be rehadbly measured and it js prabable that future econeric benefits associated

with the item will flow 10 the enniy, Otherwise they a*e written off to the mcome stalement a3 incurred

Pie-opening expenses incurred prior o the opening of new molorway service area outlels are writien off «n tne period in which they adse. These
are p ted within P | lems due to thelr sain-recurring pature.

Intangibte assets
Intangible assets are stated al cost less any accumutated amor and any pf ion for empairment, and are wtten off over theis expecied
uselul fives on a straight tine basis as folraws;

Computer s¢ftware 5 years
Licences and agreements Over the pesiod of the relevant agreement

Amgoniisation of inlangible assels is charged to administrative expense in the income statement
Property, plant and equipment

Property, p'ant and equipment is stated at cost {intluding capiatised i 1) or d cost net of depreciation and any provision [or
impairment, and afe written off over the’r expected useful lives on 3 sira-ght fine basis as follows

Freehold and tong leasehold bui’dings 50 years
Leng leaseha'd land Over the term of the lease
Short leasehold fand and buikdings Over the term of the lease

Plant and machinery, fixtures and fittings and computer equipment are ali included wilhin ‘Fixtures, fitings and equipment’ in nate 16 and are
written off over their expected useful lives on a straight line basis as faTows'

Plant and machinery 5.25 years

Fixtures and fitings 5-7years

Computer equipmen: 3-5years

Motor veh.cles Over the term of the lease
Assets in the course of ¢ tion are not dep d until the date of completion.




ROADCHEF LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 2 JANUARY 2022

1 Accounting policies (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group and Company's nan-financial assets inctude goodwill, property. plamt and equipment and investments in subsdiaries. At each
reporting date, the Group reviews the camying amouns of non-financial assels 10 delermine whether there is any indication thal those assets
have suffered an impairment loss, If any such indication exists, an impairment ss calculaled as the difference batween the carrying value and
the recoverable value of the assel. or cash-generaling unit. Recoverable value 13 the higher of nel realisable value and estimated value in use
at the date the impairment foss is recognised. Value in use represents the present value of expected future discounted cash flows Impairment
losses are recognised thiough the income statement.

tmpalrment of financial assets

The Graup considers at each reporting dale whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets s
impaired. Provisions for imparment are measured using an expected cred:t (0ss model Disclosures retating 1o the impairment of financral
assels are given in notes 20 and 27

investment in subsidiaries
Invesiment In subsidianes are slated al ¢ast less provision for impairment.

inventories
lnventones are stated at the lewer of cost. on a standard costing basis, and net realisable vatue There « no inclusion of overheads n

inventories ,

Loans and borrowings
Loans and borrowings are initially slated at fair value, net of directly attnbutable transaction costs. After nitial recognition, loans and borrowings
ase subsequenily measured al amortised cost using the effective interest rate meihod.

Penslons

The pension costs fpr defined contribution schemes ace the conlributions payable in the year. The Group aperales two pension schemes
providing benefits based on final pensionable pay. The assels of these schemes are held separalely from those of the Group. The pension
scheme surplus or deficit is recogmised in full to the extent allowed giving consideration 1o IFRIC 14 The liabihty recognised in respect of
defined benefit schemes is the present value of the defined benefit obligation less the markel value of the assets. The defined benefit obligation
1s ca'sulated annuafly by independent actuares using the projected unit method. The present value of the defined benefit obligations is
determined by discounting the estimated future cash flows using interest rates on high quality corp bonds d i in sterling. The
movement in the scheme surpl ficit.is split b admini: ive expenses. finance costs and other comprehensive income in line with
1AS 19,

Exceptional items
Exceptional items compnse evenlts or ransactons which by virtue of their size and incidence the directors consider to be exceptional s nature
and have been disclosed ly. (n order 0 imp: a reader's und g of the financial statements

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at thew faxr value where there |s a reasonabie assurance that the grant wil be received and the
Group will comply with all altacned conditions Gavernment grants refaing 1o costs are deferred and recognised in profit or loss over the pencd
necessary to match them wilh the costs that Ihey are intended to compensate.

Amourits owed by group companies
Amounts awed by group ¢companies are intially recognised at far vaiue and subsequenlly measured at this value less loss allowances,
caltulated uging the three stage IFRS 9 model



ROADCHEF LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE PERIOD ENDEO 2 JANUARY 2022

1 Accounting palicies (continuad)

Deferred tax
Dsferred tax is provided using the habilty method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reponting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabililies are recognised for all taxable temporary differences. except.

« When the deferred tax liability arises {rom the initial recognition of goodwili or an asset or liabilty in @ transaction that is not a business
combinalion ang, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting grofit nar taxable profit or toss;

* In respect of 1axable temporary differences associaied with investments in idiari 1 and int injoint arrang when
the timing of the reversal of the temporary ditferences can be conlroled and it is probable that the porary differences will not reverse in the
foreseaable future.

Delerred tax assets are recogrused for al! deductible temporary diffarences. the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses
Oelerred 1ax assels are recognised to the extent that <1 is probable that taxable profil will be avarable against which the deductible temporary
aifferences, and the carry ferward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, excepl:

« When the deferred tax asset felating to the deductible temporary difference anses from the iniia) recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction thal is a0t a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, afiects nesther the accounting profit nor taxabile profit or loss:

« In respect of deductible temporary differences assccialed with investments 1n subsid asies, deferred tax assels are recognised only to the
extent that it is probabdle that (he tlemporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can ba utilised

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reposting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable thal
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all ar part of the defeired tax asset lo be ulilised. Unrecognised delerred tax assets are re-
assessed at each ieporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable proliis will allow the deferred
tax assel to be recovered.

Deferced tax assels and hiabilities are measured at the (ax rates that are expecied to apply i the period when the asset is realised or the liability
's setiied, based on 1ax rates (and tax taws) that have been enacied or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deterred lax items are recagnised in correlation to the underlying ransaction, either in the :ncome statement or other comprehensive income

Deferred tax asséts and deferred tax habiities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assels against current tax
liabitines and the deferred taxes relale to the same 1axable enlity ang the same taxation authority

Tax benelits acquired as part of a business combinalion. but not salisfying the criteria for separate recogrution at that date, are recognised
subsequently if new information about facts and circumsiances change The adjustmen is either veated a8 a reduciion in goodwill {3s long as it
does nol exceed goodwill) it it was incurred during the measurement period of recognised in profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents
For the purpose of the Consolidated Cash Fiow S cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand and bank overdrafts
held




ROADCHEF LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 2 JANUARY 2022

t A ting policies (continued)

Fair value measuremant
Derivalives are measured al fair value al each balance sheet date and are accounted lor as fair value through profit and loss. Fair value retated
disclosures for financia’ instruments that are measured al fair value or where fair va’ues are disclosed, are summarised » note 28

Fair vaiue is the price that would be received {0 sell an assel or paid to ranster a hability in an orderly tr tion b )y market ipants
at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on Lhe presumption that the transaction to sell the asset of transfer the liabdity
1akes place either: .

- In the princ.pal market for the asset or tiabdity, or
- In ke absence of a principal markel. in the most advantageous market for the asset of abilty.
The principa) or the most advantagecus market must be accessible by the Group

The fair va’ue of an asset of a liabliity is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when gricing 1he asset or badility,
assuming that market panticipants act in thew economic besl interest

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropnate in the crcumstances and for which sufficeent dala are avaiable to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observabdle inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs

All assets and labimes for which fair vaiue is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are calegonsed within the (air vatue hierarchy,
described as foilows, based on the lowest fevelinput that is significant 10 the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1- quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or habdilities;

Level 2 other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant elfect on the recorded fair value are observable, either directly or
indirectly: and

Level 3: techmques which use inputs which have a significant effect an the recarded fair value that are not based on observable market data.

For assets and habiites that are recognised in the financial slatements on a recurring basis, the Group ¢ 1es whether fers have
cccuired between fevels in the hiecarchy by re-assessing categarsation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair vatue
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period

Far the puipose of fair value disclosures the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characterislics
and risks of the asset of liabilily and the leve! of the fair value hierarchy as explained above

Leased assets: Lessor
Rentals received under operating leases are credited 10 revenue on a straight kne basis over each lease term.
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1 Accounting policies (continued)
Leased assets: Lessee

Assels and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present vakue of the
foilawing lease payments:

. fixa_d payrnents, less any lease incentives receivable,

- variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate. ‘nilially measured using the index of rate as at the commencement date:

+ amounis expected o be payable by the group under residual va'ue guaraatees,

« the exercise price of a purchase optian if the group is reasonably cenain to exerciie that cption, and

« payments of penalties for terminating the fease, if the tease term reflects the Company exercising that oplion,

Lease payments to be made under reasonably cenain extenson oplio;as are also included in the measurement of the iabiity

The lease paymenls are discountad using the interest rate ¢mpicit in the lease W that rate cannot be readily delermined, the Company's
incrementa! borrowing rate is used being Lhe rate that the Colmpany would have (0 pay to borrow the funds necessary lo oblain an asset of
similar value o the right-of-use assel in a similar economic environment with similar terms, security and conditions

Right-of-use assels are measured al cast comprising the {ollowing

+ihe amount of Lhe intial measurement of fease liability;

* any lease payments made at or before the commencement dale less any lease incentives received,

* any ininal direct costs, and

* res107ation costs

Right-ol-use assets are presented within prapenty, plant and equipment.

Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment and all leases of low-value assets are recogmised on a straight-hne basis as an
expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases ara leases with a lease term of 12 months or less without a purchase optlion

Variable lease payments that depend on sales are tecogmsed in profit or loss in the period 1 which he condition that triggers those payments
oceurs.

New standards, amendments and IFRIC interpretations

No new accounting standards, or amendments to accounting standards. or {FRIC interpretations that are effective for the penod ended 2
January 2022, have had a matenal impact on the Group or Company.

Cenain new accounting standards and interpretations have been published that are not mandatory for the period ended 2 Janvary 2022 and
have not been early adopted by the Group.

There are no standards that are r.ot yet effective and that wou'd be expected (o have a materal impact on the Group or Company in the current
or future reperting pefi or on for future t 3
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2

Significant accounting judgemaents, estimates and assumptl

Fhe preparation of the Group's consobdated financial s requires 8 to make judgements , estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounis of reveaues. expenses, assels and liabilities, the ac wing disclosures and tie disclosure of contingent
liabtliies. Uncenainty about these assump and esli could result in outcomes that require a material adjusiment to the carrying

amount of assels or Fabililies affected in future periods.

The key assumplions concerning the future and other key sources of estmation uncenainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment 1o the carfying amounts of assels and liabifities wilhin the next inancial year, are descr:bed detow. The Group
tas based its assumplions and estmates on parameters avaiable when the consolidaled financial statements wer prapared Existng
cirgur and assump about future developments . hov.ever, may change due to market changes or circumstarces aris:ing beyond the
control of the Group. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Estimates

tmpalrment of non-financial assets

An impaitment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit ("CGU") exceeds its recoverable amaun. which is the higher
of sts fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value less costs of disposal ca’culation 1s based on available dala from
binding sales transaclions, condutted at arm’s length for similar assels or observable market prices less inc [ costs for disposing of the
asset. The value in use calculation is based on a discounted cash flow ("DCF") model. The cash flows are derived from the budget for the next
five years and do rot include restructuring activities that the Group is not yel commulted o of significant future invesiments that wil enhance the
assel's performance of the CGU being tested, The recoverable amount 1s most sensitive to the discount rate used for the OCF model as well as
the expecied future cash-inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation putposas. The key assumplions used 10 determine the recoverable
amount for the different CGUs. including a sensitivily analysis, are disclosed and further explained in note 15

Defined benefit plans (pension benefits)

"The .cost of defined benefit pension plans and the presem value of the pension obligation are determined using actuaral valualions. An

acluarial valuation involves making vanous assumptions which may differ from actual develcpments in the future These inciude the
determination of the discount rate, monality rates and inflation Due to the complexity of the vatuation. the underlying azsumptians and its long-
lerm nature a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive 10 changes In these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting
date

Further deta:s about pessian obligauans are provided in nate 31.

Falr value ement of fi I inste
The Group measures derivative financial instruments in the form of interest rate swaps at lair value updated al each reporing date

Further details about derivative financtal instruments are provided in note 23

Provisions .

Roadchef (Employee Benefits Trust) Limited ("REBTL*} is a 100% subsidiary of the Group and acts as a lrustee for the Roadche! Employee
Benefits Trust ("EBT1°). REBTL has represented the interests of EBTt hrough count proceedings against Tim Ingram Mill and other
defendants Fallowirg a High Coun Ruling against the defendants on 29 January 2014 an agreement for setilement of anlicipated receipls from:
the defendants was reached on 19 Novernber 2014 (the "Agreement”) which are now held by EBT1 (or eventual dislribulion to beneficianes

Tne Group has a provision for the payment of employment taxes following a ctaim by HMRC that the Group wili be liable for charges assocrated
with a disinbution of funds from EBT1 Based upon recent discussions with HMRC and having given full considesation to all avaladle
documentary evidence and with the suppont of speciazst counsel, the Directors have updated ther esti of the p | outfiow that is
expected, and have reduced (he provision for this accordingly.

Further details an the pravision recognised in respect of EBT1 disiributions are disclosed in note 25.
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2  Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions {continued)
Judgements
Taxes
Defersed tax assats are recagnised for unused tax losses (0 the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be ava fabdle against which the
fasses can be utllised Significant management judgement is required o determine the amount of delerred tax assels that can be recognised,
batind ypon the likely timing and the leve of fulure taxable profits, together with future 1ax planning stategies

Furinet dela:ls on taxes are disclosed in note 14,

C lidation of Roadchef (Employee Benefits Trust) Limited

Tne directors of Roadchel baseve it is not appropriate 1o consol.date the assets of EBY1 as they do nol have control over €8T pursuant to the
various rulings and the Agreement |n panicular Roadchel has no control over vho individual beneficiaries are nor the gquantum of potential
d:stribution to them

Furthermore no employee of Rgadchel has been 3 gdirector of REBTL since 29 July 2016 nor has EBT1 had any potential reliance on suppont
frem Roadche! since 2014 Were the assets and ligbilities of EBT1 to dbe fid within R { they would not affect the net asset
pomitsan of Roadchef

I Roadchef assists in the distribution of these funds (o current emptoyees in the future it will be acting as an agent only To the extent that EBT1
holds these funds they will not be consoatidated In the financial siatements of Roadche! for the reasans mentoned atove Any funds teceived
from EBT1 by Roadchef would be restricted and only avaitable for making payments to Ihe beneficlaries of the trust Any funds recewed by
Roadchef fiom EBT1 for distibution to beneficiaries and undistributed at a fulure balance sheel date would be disclosed within the assets of
Roadchef with 3 ¢orresponding Habisty.

Contingent asset

The Graup has not recognised an asset in rejaton to a potential inflow resulting from ongoing cor | i The di S cannot
determine the likelthood of an economic benefit arising for the Group and, given this uncertainty, have not disclosed a contingent asset in
respect of this
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3

Revenue
Period ended Year ended
2 January 27 December
2022 2020
€'m £m
Sale of geods : 148.6 9.7
Provision of services 24.0 15.6
Rental income 83 6.9
480.9 114.2

Revenue from the sale of goods and pravision of services s recognised when when goods ase transierred 10 customer and performance
obligations met. Payment from customers s taken at the point in which performance obligalions have been met, which is typically on transfer of
goods or rendering of a service 1o customers.

The datance of contract assels and liabilities at 2 January 2022 is £nil (27 December 2020 £nil)

There ate no outstanding performance cobligations assoclated with contracts with custamers at 2 January 2022 (27 December 2020: none).

Cost of sates

Cost of sales includes?

Petiod ended Yeat enged
2 January 27 December
2022 2020
£€'m £m
Costs of inventories recognised as an expense i 4.4 29.6
Franchise lees 8.1 48
Consumablas, disposables and disuibution 5.3 34
Administrative expenses
Adrministrative expenses inchude
Period ended Year ended
2 January 27 December
2022 2020
£'m £m
Depreciation of property. planl and equipment (note 16)
- owned assets 16.1 17.3
- leased assets 9.7 95
Amontisation of intangible assels (note 15)
- owned assets 0.5 05
Expense relating lo variable lease payments not included in lease habdilities {note 24 21 13
Insurance cos(s 0.9 0.8
IT costs 2.7 24
Repairs and maintenance : 35 3.6
Utlities 55 46
1AS 19 pension expenses and associated cosls 0.5 0.6
Employee benefit expenses {note 8) 52.4 531
Audilors’ remuneration - audit fees (note 10) 0.3 0.3
Other fees to auditors (note 10) - 0.2
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6

Exceptional items

Pertiod ended Year ended

2 Janvary 27 December

2022 2020

£'m £m

Restruciusing costs 03 11
Pre-opening expenses ['R] 0.2
Net employment taxes and ialed expenses . 0.2) 1.3
Dilapidation expenses 0.1 -
Other 07 08
1.0 34

Restiucturing costs relate to costs following an internal recrganisation
Pre-opening expenses relate 1o non-capitaf costs associated vath the opening of a new units, which include two Lesn units during 2021

Ne1 employment taxes credit of E0 2m (27 December 2020: charge of £ 3m) s in relation 10 a provis'on for employment taxes, as disclosed in
note 25, net of reimbursements thal have been recognised as an asset, as disciosed i note 18.

Oilpadiation expenses relate 10 one-off reparr costs as required under the terms of one the Group's leasehold properties.

Other cosis relate to building safely costs and ¢osls incurred as part of the Company's response to the coronavirus pandemic, intluding
personal protective equipment for employees and enhanced heallh and salety measures for customers

The 1ax impact of the above #iems has been to reduce the curient tax charge by £0 2m (27 December 2020- £0.6m).

Government grants

Perlod ended Year ended

2 January 27 December

- 2022 2020

£'m £'m

Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme 29 93
Eat Out 1o Help Out . 14
2.9 107
The Group has participated in the 'C i Job R » Scheme’, a Goverpment initiaive to support businesses throughout the

ceranavirus pandemic via 3 grani to cover a parton of employees wages, which ran until June 2021 in the prior year the Group panicipaled in
the ‘Eat Out 10 Help Out Scheme’. a Government scheme designed to encourage customer demand throughout August 2020. As pan of this
scheme the Government paid 50% of cuslomer's ehgible foad bills, capped at £10 per head There are no unfulfilied condit:ons or other
contingencies altached to this grant

The Group has also had Government assisiance via the business rates expanded retai) disggunt, a business rates holiday for retai, hospitalty
and teisure businesses No grant income has been received in the period, however the Group has benefitted from discoynts against certain
business rates charges which would otherwise have been charged through agminisirative expenses Amounts discounted in the period which
would have cthervise been charged through admunistrative expenses in the period totat £4.4m (27 December 2020° €6 7m}.
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) fit
8  Employee b P

The average monthly number of employees duting the period was made up as follows

Period ended Year ended
2 January 27 Becember
Group 2022 2020
. Number Number
Motorway Service Areas 2,896 3.100
Head office 97 97
2,993 3.197

Their payroll cosls compnised:
£'m £'m
Wages and salaries 48.1 43,0
Social securily costs 3t 3.2
Qlher pension casts {note 31) 0.9 0.8
52.1 53.1
Parlod ended Year ended
2 January 27 Decembder
Company 2022 2020
. Number Number
Head office 97 97
97 97

Their payroli costs comprised:
£m £m
Wages and salaries 6.0 7.2
Social security costs 0.7 0.9
Other pension costs {note 31) 0.2 0.2
6.9 33

9  Directors’ remuneration
Perlod ended Year ended
2 January 27 December
2022 2020
£'m £'m
Short-term employee benefits 1.4 22
Number Number
Number of directors accrung benefits under maney puschase schemes 4 3
£'m Em
in respect of the highest paid director.

Short-term employee benefits 0.4 0.6

There were no directors (27 Oecember 2020 none) who were members of a defined benefit pension scheme.

Directors’ advances are d'sclosed in note 34
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10

"

19

Auditors’ cemuneration

The remuneration of the auditors or ther ass3ciates is funher analysed as follows
Auditors’ remuneration”

Audit of the financial slatements®

Audit of other group companies

Total audit

Auditors’ remuneralion - other services

Taxation compliance services

Tan advisory services

Other assurance services

Total other services

* £22,000 (27 December 2020: £17 000) of 1his relates (o the Company

ptional finance i i {costs)

Exceptionat inance Income/ {costs)

Period ended Year ended
2 January 27 Oecember
2022 2020

£€'000 £'000

80 50

219 210

299 260

. 20

. 161

10 8

10 189

Period ended Year ended
2 January 27 December
2022 2020

£m £m
0.8 (0.7)

Current perod exceplional finance income of £0.5m {27 December 2020 finance costs of £0.7m) has been incurred in relation to a provision for

employment taxes, as disclosed in note 28.

Finance Income

Fair value movement on denvatives (note 23)
Other interest received

Finance costs

Bank toans and overdrafts

Finance costs of loans

Finance costs payable under leases

Other interest

Fair vatue movement on derivalives {note 23)

28

Period ended Year ended
2 January 27 December
2022 2020
£'m £m
8.3
0.2 -
8.5 -
Perlod ended Year ended
2 January 27 December
2022 2020
£€m £'m
89 8.3
11 09
0.2 02
. 5.7
10.2 151
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14 Taxation
Taxation through lidated } 1 t Period ended Year ended
2 January 27 December
2022 2020
£'m £m
Corporation tax
Current tax on profit for the period 1.3 .
Adjustments in respect of prier periods (0.4) (0.2)
Tota! current tax 0.9 {0.2)
Deferred tax -
Orngination and reversai of timing differences 3.5 (5.0
Adj s in respect of prior peri 0.2 02
Effect of changes in tax rates on deferred tax balange 56 24
Total 1ax ¢harged; (credited) to 1icome statement 10.2 {2.8)
T ion through lidated st of other comprehensive | : A Period snded Year ended
2 January 27 December
2022 2020
£'m £'m
Defarred tax
Delerred 1ax related to lems recognised in other comprehensive income during the period:
Movement in pension schemes 0.7 02)
Tolal 1ax charged! (credited) to other comp V5,ve ! (exp ) 0.7 {0 2)

The total current tax chargef (credit) is diferent to the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 19.6% (27 December 2020: 19 0°:). The
material differences are reconesled below

Period ended Year ended
2 January 27 December
2022 2020
£'m £'m
Profit/ (loss) before taxation 14.2 {37.5)
Profi¥/ (loss) before taxatian multiplied by the UK tax rate of 19.00% (27 December 2020: 19.00%) 2.7 {2.1)
Transler pricing adjustments {0.3) {0.2)
Effect of changes in tax rates on deferred tax batancs 56 24
Adjustments 1n respect of prior periods {0.2) .
Group relief {claimed) surrendered not paid for (0.9) . 0.2
Expenses not deductble for tax purposes 33 21
Total tax charged/ {crediled) to income slatement 10.2 {2.6)
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14 Taxation (continued)

Recongiliation of geferred (axes

Group Consolidated balance shest Consali income statement
Periad ended Year ended
2 January 27 December 2 January 27 Decembet
2022 2020 2022 2020
£m T£m £€m £m
Progperty. plant and equipment (40.0} {30.4) {9.6} (t9)
Peasion fund (1.4} 0.2) - {0.5) (0.1}
Losses 1.5 13 0.2 44
Qther short term biming differences 2.2 1.6 0.6 -
Oeferred (ax (charge) credit thiough income statement {8.3) 24
Net deferred tax liability {27.7) (177)
Reflected as:
Deferred tax liabilives {27.7) (rn
(27.7) (17 7)
Movements in net deferred tax habitity, 2 January 27 December
2022 2020
f'm £'m
Net deferred tax liability
Opening liability {(17.n {20.34
(Charge) credi through income statement (9.3) 24
{Charge¥ credit thuough other comprehensive ingome! (expense) 0.7y 0.2
Closing liabiity (27.7) (7.0

The Group has chosen not {o recognise a potential deferred 1ax asset of £9 3m n respect of corporate nleres! restrictions (27 December 2020
£7.1m) due to uncertainty ovar the recoverability of this asset

Factors thal may aff re lax charges
In the Spring Budgetl 2021, the Government announced that from 1 April 2023 the corporalion tax rale will increase to 25% This was

substantively enacted on 24 May 2021 Oeferced tax balances have been catculated with ceference (o the tax rate which s most tkely to be
applicable when amounts are reversed

Recongcitialion of delerred taxes
Company

The Company has chosen nol 1o recognise a potental deflerred tax asset of £9.5m in respect of brought forward tax losses and ccrporate
nteres! resirictrons (27 December 2020: £10 8m) due to uncertainty over the recoverabily of this asset.

N
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15

Intangible assets

Group Goodwill on Computer Licences and

consolidation Software agreements Total

£'m £m £'m £'m

Cost or valuatlon
At 30 December 2019 10 73 04 87
Additions - 05 0.1 0.8
AL 27 December 2020 1.0 7.8 0.5 9.3
Additions . 03 . 03
Disposats - {01) {0.1) {0.2)
At 2 January 2022 1.0 8.0 [X] 9.4
Accumulated amortisation
At 30 December 2019 0.2 61 01 6.4
Charge for the period - 0.5 - 0.5
Al 27 December 2020 0.2 6.6 0.1 6.9
Charge for the period - 0.4 0.4 0.5
Disposals - 0.1) . 0.1)
At 2 January 2022 0.2 6.9 0.2 7.3
Net book value
At 2 January 2022 0.8 1.1 0.2 2.1
Al 27 December 2020 08 12 0.4 24
Al 29 December 2019 0.8 12 0.3 2.3

Compuler software and hicences are amorised over thes estimaled usefut economic ife as detarled in the accounting policies.

Goodwill relates 1o the acquisiton of First Molonway Services Limited in 2011, The enbire carrying amount of goodwill has been allocated to the
Magor motonway services as a cash generating unit (“CGU").

The Group 1s required 1o test, on an annual basis whether goodwill has suffered any Imparment, The recoverable amount is determined based
on value in yse calculations The use of this hod requires the estimalion of fulure cash flows and the determination of a discount rate in
order to calculale the present valug of the cash flows

The recoveratle amount of the Magar CGU has been determined from value m use calculalons based on cash flow grojections from formally
approved budgets covering a five year petiod to 31 Dezember 2026. Other major assumplions are as follows

Oiscount rate 1.6%
Growth cate 3.0%

The recoverable amounts of the Magor CGU has been eslimated 0 exceed the carrying amount by £15.7m (27 December 2020: £15.4m).

Managemenls Bssumplions ate based upoa past experience as well 3s market conditions existing at the reporting date

if any one of the following changes were made to the above key assumplions, the carrying amouni and recoverable amount would be equal

Discount rate Incraase from 7.6% to 21.6%
Growth rate Reductton from 3.0% growth to 15.6% decline
The dwectors ate of the gpinion that the itvaty 16t key assumpticns used is within tolerable levels
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15 glble assets (continued)

Company Computer Licences and

Software agr Tota!

£'m £'m £'m

Cost
At 28 December 2020 74 0.6 80
Additons a3 - 03
Disposals ’ o on 0.7 0.2)
At 2 January 2022 1.6 0.5 8.4
A L amor i {
At 28 December 2020 6.4 0.1 65
Charge for the penod 0.4 01 0.5
Oisposats 01) : (013
At 2 January 2022 6.7 0.2 6.9
Net book value
At 2 January 2022 0.9 0.3 1.2
A1 27 Dezember 2020 10 05 15
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16 Property, plant and equipment

Group Land and buildings Fintures,
tong Short fiings ang
Fraohotd 1easenold teasenold equipment Total
£'m £'m €m £'m £'m
Cost or deemed cost
At 30 December 2019 1359 542 2014 1232 5147
Adjustment for change In
accounling poticy - 30 23 $3
Additions - . 0.6 88 94
Disposals - - . {5.8} {5.6)
A1 27 December 2020 135.9 54.2 205.0 1287 523.8
Addilions - . - 9.6 9,6
Disposals - - - (4.4} (4.9
At 2 January 2022 1359 54.2 205.0 133.9 529.0
Accumulated depreciation
A1 30 December 2019 169 93 701 61,5 1578
Adjustment for change in
accounting palicy - - 03 12 15
Charge for the petiod 2.0 09 79 180 68
Disposals - - - (39) 39)
At 27 December 2020 18.9 10.2 78.3 748 182.2
Charge lor the period 19 09 81 149 258
Disposals - - - {3.8) {38)
At 2 January 2022 20.8 11.1 86.4 85.9 204.2
Net book value
Al 2 January 2022 115.1 43.1 118.6 48.0 3248
Al 27 Dacember 2020 117.0 44.0 126.7 538 3416
At 29 December 2019 119.0 449 1313 61.7 3569
Propenty, plant and equipment includes right-of-use asseis as follows. 2 January 27 December
2022 2020
£m £'m
Net book value
Leasehold land and buildsngs 1617 170.7
Equipment 1.9 19
Molor vehicles 0.5 04
164.1 173.0
2J Y 270 b
2022 2020
£m £'m
Depreciation charge for the pariod
Leasehold land and buildings 9.0 8.8
Equipment 0.3 0.3
Motor vehicles 04 0.4
9.7 9.5

Additions to the right-of use assets during the geriad were £0 8m (27 December 2020: £1.2m)

The leasehold fand and bufdirgs were professionally valued by external vatuers Cushman & Wakefield, as at 17 December 2018, on an open
market lor existing use basis, in accordance with the Royal Instilution of Chartered Surveyors Appraisal and Valuation manual, and based upon
a multiple of projected future earnngs before interest, taxation, depreciation and amontisation: ("EBITDA”). The market value of property, plant

and equipment at 17 December 2018 was €417 6m.
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16 Property, plant and equipment {continued)

Company Fixtures
Freehold fittings and
tand equipment Total
£'m £'m £€m
Cost i
A1 28 December 2020 0.3 33 36
Additions - 09 09
Disposals - (1.2} (12)
Teanslers 1o group companies - {0.1) (0 1)
At 2 January 2022 03 29 3.2
Accumulated depreciation
Al 28 December 2020 - 2.1 2.1
Charge for the period - 0.7 0.7
Disposals - an (1.1)
At 2 January 2022 - 1.7 1.7
Not book value
At 2 January 2022 0.3 1.2 1.5
At 27 Dacember 2020 0.3 1.2 1.5
Propenty. plant 2nd equipment :ncludes right-of-use assets as foifows: 2 January 27 December
2022 2020
€m £'m
Net book value
Equipment 0.2 Q3
Motor vehicles 0.5 0.4
0.7 0.7
2 January 27 Decembaer
2022 2020
£m £'m
Depreciation charge for the period
Equipment 0.1 0.2
Motor vehicles 04 04
0.5 08

Adaitions to the right-of-use assets during the periad were £0.8m (27 Oecember 2020: £0.2m)
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17

18

investmaents in subsidiaries

: . Subsidiary
Company undertaking
. £'m

Cost and net book vatue ———
At 27 December 2020 and 2 January 2022 302.8

The Company’s subsid:aries are lsted below These companies are wholly owned and the shareholdings are in ordinary shares. Aside fram
those otherwise slated_ the registered address of these companies 1 Roadche! House, Norton Canes MSA Betty's Lane, Norton Canes,
Cannock, Staffordsh:re, WS 11 3UX

Name Holding Pdnclpal acllvnty

Roadchel Newco 1 Limuted Ouwect tntere

Roadchel Newco 2 Limited Direct Intermed:ate ho' d-ng company
Roadchef Newco 3 Limited Direct Property holding company
Roadchel Motarways Hoidings Lim:ted Indirect intermed:ate holding company
Roadchet Development Hoidings Limaed Indirect Motorway Service Area
Roadchef Motorways Limited indirect Motorway Service Area

Blue Boar Motorways Limited Indirect Motorway Semvice Area

First Molorway Services Limited Indirect Motorway Semvice Area
Takeabreak Motonvay Servces Limited * Indirect Non-traging company
Roadchef (Winchester) Limited Indirect Non-trading company
Roadchet {(Employee Benefits Trustees) Limited Drrect Non.trading company

Blue Boar Graup Limited Direct Non-trading company

Blue Boar Group (1995) Limited Indirect Non-trading company -
Blue Boar Company Limited Indirect Non-trading company
Roadchel (Profit Sharing Trustees) Limited Direct Non-lrading company
Roadchef Management Trustees Limited Direct Non-trading company
McDonald’s Costa Limited Direct Non-trading company
Roadchef (Chester) Limited Indirect Non-trading company
Roadchef (Clacket Lane} Lémited Indirect Non-trading company
Roadchel (Outham) timited indirect Non:trading company
Roadchel {Killington) Limited Indirect Non-trading company
Roadchef Cosla Cotfee L/muted Indirect Non-trading company
Roadchet {Pont Abraham) Limited Indirect Non-trad:ng company
Roadchet (Rownhams) Limited Indirect Nen-rading company
Roadchef (Sandbachj Limited Indirect Non-lrading company
Roadchef (Sedgemoor) Lamited Indirect Non-trading company
Roadchef (Taunton) Limited Indsect Non-irading company
Superodge Limited Indicect Non-trading company

* Regisiered in the United Kingdom at C/O Mazars Lip 1st Figor, Two Chambertain Squate Bumingham. B3 3AX

Other assets
2 January 27 December

2022 2020
Em £'m
Group
Current assels:
Ciher assels - current asset 0.2 -
Non-curient assets:
Other assels - ngn-current assel - 23
Long term prepayments RXJ 25
3.0 48

Other assets relate o the reimbursement of employment taxes that would be due to the Group in the event that the Group is required 1o setile
obligations to HMRC, as deiailed in note 24 The value of other rece;vables has been calcutated with reference to the provision recognised in
note 25 and has been recognised based upon the sirength of evidence which suppons the Group's contractual fight to receive reimbursement.
Furthermore [+] have idered and gained documentary evidence that sufficient resources are avaitable for the reimbursement to
be made In recognising the Indemnification asset, the Dizectors have taken legal advice, odtaining comfont that the contractual right to receive
reimbursement {3 legally enforceable and that there are sufficlent liqu'd funds to horour the cor sal indemnification. C ly, the
Directors have concluded that it s vitually certain, in accordance with the requremenis of IAS 37, that the liabllity vl be mdemmﬁed and an
asset of £0.2m has been recognised.

Long term prepay:ents refate 1o payments made to enter ¢al option agreements which give the Group the right to purchase undeveloped land
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19

20

2

inventories

Group

Raw materials and consumables
Goods for resale

The reptacement value of stock 1s not materially different to its cost in either period

Debtors - amounts faiting due within one year

Group

Trade receivadles

Other receivables

Prepaymenis and accrued income

As at 2 January 2022, wrade cecenvables of £0.6m (27 December 2020 £0 1m) were past due. The ageing

follows.

Pasidue
1.30 days
3160 days
> 60 days

The movement m provis:on for impairment aga:nst rade receivabies is as foflows:

Opening provision
Amounts provided

Closing provision

Company

Amounts owed by group companies
Other receivables

Prepaymenits and accrued income

2 January 27 December
2022 2020

£'m €'m

03 03

3.0 26

3.3 29

2 January 27 December
2022 2020

E'm £'m

33 1.8

0.4 Q.7

7.9 59

11.6 84
lysis of these ¢ bles is as
2 January 27 December
2022 2020

£€m £'m

0.4 .

0.1 -

01 01

0.6 01

2 January 27 December
2022 2020

£'m £m

0.1 -

- 01

0.1 0.1

2 January 27 Qecember
2022 2020

£€m £'m

51.0 50.0

0.3 0.4

03 05

$1.6 50.9

Amounts owed by other group companes are non-interes| beanng and conlraclually repayable on demand. The likelihood of defaull on
amounts owed by other group comparses has been considered wilh a provision for impaimment of £6 8m included at 2 January 2022 (27

December 2020 £6.8m).

Cash and cash equivalents

Group
Cash and cash eguivalents

Company
Cash and cash equwatents

3

2 January 27 December
2022 2020
£m £m
304 16.4
2J Y 27 D« b
2022 2020
£m €m
5.2 2,7
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22 Creditors - amounts falling due within one year R

2 January 27 December

2022 2020
£'m £'m
Group

Trade payabdles 9.8 80
Amaunts owed 10 a group company 3.0 33.0
Other taxes and social securily 4.0 3.2
Qther gayables . 0.3 0.3
Accruals 127 13.2
59.8 57,7
2 January 27 December
2022 . 2020
£m £m

Company
Teade payables 1.3 20
Amounts owed 10 group companies 102.2 84.7
Olher taxes and soclal security 0.3 25
Other payables 0.2 0.2
Accruals 3.2 39
107.2 933

Amounis owed to group companies are unsecured, non-interest bearing and conlractualy repayabie on demand

Other terms and conditions of the above financial liabilites

- Trade payabtes are non-interest bearing and are normally sentled on 45-day terms

- Other taxes and social secunty are non-interest bearing and fall due for payment within two months of the reporting date
- Other payables are non-inierest bearing and fall due for payment within one month of the raporting date

23  Derivative financial instruments
The Group canducts derivative transaclions i the form of interest rate swap ¢ ts The purp: s to ge the inlerest rate nsk arising
from the Group's sources of finance. it is the Group's pokcy that no trading in financial instruments shall be undentaken Derivative financial
habiliies have been classified as fair value through profit and toss The fair values of the denvalives held at the balance sheet date, determined
by reference to their market values. are as foliows

2 January 27 December

Derivative financial liabilitles: 2022 2020
£'m £m

Group

Interest rate swaps (%] 89

Company

Interest rate swaps 0.6 8.9
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F L)

Loans and botrowings

2 January 27 December
2022 2020
£m £'m
Group
Secured bank toans 254.4 257.4
Leases 26 ?9
257.0 260 3
Secured bank loans 2 January 27 Oecembet
2022 2020
E'm £'m
Secured bank loans maturity:
Repayabte in more than two years but not more than five years 2544 253.3
254.4 253.3
Repayable in One year or less . 4.1
254.4 257.4
The secured bank loans are repayable as follows: 2 January 27 December
R 2022 2020
£'m £m
LIBOR + 2.25% repayable March 2021 . 5.0
LIBOR + 2 25% repayable January 2024 256.5 255.3
256.5 260.3
Less linance costs allocated to future penods 2.1) (29)
254.4 257.4

The secured bank loans he'd at 2 January 2022 are secured by fixed and floating charges over assets hetd by the Group.

Al 2 January 2022, the Group had availabte £5,000 000 (27 December 2020 £nil}of und: d borrowing facilities in respect ¢f which
all conditrons precedent had been met. The Group aiso had available £10,300,000 (27 December 2020: £11.500.000) of undrawn committed
capex facility. The capex facility 1s available as a source of funding for development of propedy. plant and equipment. Bath of these facitities
expire during January 2024,

Secured bank loans held by the Group at 2 January 2022 were repaid on 7 Aprit 2022 following a refinance of the Group’s borrowings (note 33).

Lease liabilitigs 2 January 27 December
2022 2020
£'m £m

Lease maturity:
Current 0.7 1.0
Non-cutrent 1.9 1.8
2.8 2.8

Interest expenses for the pericd of £0.2m (27 December 2020. £0 2m) have been charged o finance costs in refation to leases.

Variable lease payments thal depend on sales of £2 tm (27 December 2020. £1 3m) have been charged (0 3admimsirative expenses and are
not mcluded in the measurement of lease habilities.

The leases are secured by charges over specific related assets

The Groyp's flinancial risk management policies for lquidity and interesi rate risks associaled with financial kabitities are discussed m note 27,
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24 Loans and borrowings {cantinued)

2 January 27 December
2022 2020
£m £'m
Company

Secured bank loans 1271.2 1301
Leases 07 08
127.3 130.9
Secured bank loans 2 Janvary 27 December
2022 2020
€m £m

Secured bank loans maturity:
Repayabte in mora than two years but not more than five years 127.2 1260
127.2 126.0
Repayable in one year or less . 41
127.2 130:1

The secured bank loans are repayable as {ollows:
2 Janwsary 27 December

‘ 2022 2020
£'m £'m
LIBOR + 2 25% repayable March 2021 ’ . 5.0
LIBOR + 2 25% repayable January 2024 129.2 1280
129.2 1330
Less finance cos!s allocated o fulure periods (.00 29)
127.2 130.1

The secured bank loans held at 2 Jaswary 2022 are secured by fned and flatang charges over assets held by the Group

Al 2 Janvary 2022, the Company had available £5,000,000 (27 December 2020: Emt) of undrawn commulted borrowing facitities 1n respect of
which 3ll condiions precedent had been mel. The Company a's0 had avadable £10.300,000 (27 December 2020 £11,500.000) of undrawn
comm:tied capex lacility. The capex facilly is available as a source of funding for development of property. plant and equipment. Bolh of these
facilives expire Juring Janyary 2024 .

Sacured bank foans held by the Company at 2 Janvary 2022 were repaid on 7 Aprit 2022 fellowing a refinance of the Company’s borrowings
(note 33),

Leases 2 January 27 December
2022 2020
£m £'m

Loase liabilities

Current 04 0.4
Non-current 0.3 0.4
0.7 0.8

The leases are secured by charges over specific re’ated assets
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25 Other provisions

2 January 27 Oecember

2022 2020

£'m £'m

Employment taxes - current ligbility 1.4 -
Employment taxes - non-current labihty - 4.3

The Group has made a provision for employment taxes fotiowing a claim by HMRC that the Group will be liable for charges associaled with a
disteibution of funds from EBT Y, disussed manle 2 The provision recognised at 2 Jaruary 2022 & based upon an agreed position with HMRC

26 Deferred revenue
‘2 JMnyary 27 December

2022 2020
£'m £'m
Group

Opening balance 9.7 9.4
Credited o income stalement {0.7) on
Closing bafance 8.0 87
2 January 27 December

2022 2020

£'m £'m

Current ' 0.7 07
Non-current 73 8.0

8.0 8.7

d|
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27 Financial ts - risk g

The Group’s principal financial instruments compnse casn and cash equivalents, Irade and othar receivables, trade and other payables, fixed
and Roaling rate borrowings. interest rale swaps and equily instruments.

The Group is exposed to a number of risks associated with these financialinstruments, in pasticular the Group is exposed to credit nisk, markel
nsk and hquidily nsk, The Group operates solely within the UK and has minima! exposure lo foreign currency lransactions, which eliminates
exposure to foreign exchange risk. The Group’s management tuash &versees the management of these risks and is supported on a day-lo-day
basis by the treasury funclion

The treasury funclion is provided centratly for the Gioup as 3 whofe this includes Roadchef Limited and all of its subsidiaries. The treasury
objective is to ensure that risks are reduced to a mzsimtum The Group does not use complex financial instruments in the management of these
exposures, The exposures and measuses taken by the Group to miligate them are reviewed by the board of (he Group on a regular basis. The
Group does not enter into transactions of a speculative nature. nos irades in financial instruments.

There have been no subslantive changes :n the Group's exposure to financial inslrument risks. ils objeclives, policies and processes for
managing those nsks or the methods used 1o measure them lram previous periods unless olherwise stated in this note

Credit risk

Credil nsk is the nsk of financial 1oss to the Group i a customer of counterparty 10 a finangzal instrument fails to meel its contractuat obhgatons
The Group's principat financial assels are trade reteivables ¢ £3 3m (27 December 2020: £1.8m). which represent the Group's maximum
exposure to credit risk in refation to financiat assets.

Trade recewvables are made up of credit card recewvables, wivoiced sales not yel collected, and reb due from suppliers Credit card
receivables are held with blue<chip ‘es and are co'l d in 3-5 days after a sate being recorded, card teceivables represent a tow levey
of credit risk o the business Ilnavoiced sales and suppher rebates are generally on 30 day terms from point of billing. Customers who do not pay
within their terms of credit are individually d by g ) and a pi ion for impail W made as necessary. Historic experience of
invoiced sales and suppher rebates wou'd indicale a low fevel of credit risk to the business. No collaterat os other credit enhancements are held

Market risk
Marke! risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of 3 faancial instrument wil fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Far the
Group. tinanctal instruments affected by market risk are loans and barrowings, and derivatives

Interest rate risk

interest rate risk is the risk that the faur value of future cash flows of a hnancial instrument will Auctuate because of changes in market interest
rates. The Group's exposure to the nsk of changes in market interast rates relates pnmarily to the Group's long-term debl obligations with
Noating interast rates.

The Group manages its (nterest rate nsk by maintawing a ba'anced pontoso of fixed lo floating rale borrowngs, with varying rates of matufity
For tong-term borrowings subject to floaling sales of interest_ Interesl rate swaps are used 10 fix al teast 70% of variable rate debi held.

At 2 January 2022, after taking into accgunt the effect of tnlezest rate swaps and includ:ng leasas held, approximately 9% of the Group's
borrowings are at a fixed rate of interest {27 December 2020: 86%)
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27 Financial Instruments - risk management (continued)

Interest rate sensitivity .
After taking into account the eHect of interest rate swaps. with all other variables held constant. a 50 basis-point shift would result in an increase

or decrease of the Group's profit before tax of £0.1m through the impact on floating rate borrowings (27 December 2020: £0.2m).

The assumed movement in basis points for the Interest rate sensilivity analysis is based on the currenlly observable markel environment and
represenis the maximurmn reasonable expeclation of changes in interest rates.

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk arises from the Group's management of working capilal and the finance charges and pringipal repayments on ds debl insruments
g the rigk that the Gioup will encounter difficully in meeting its financial obligations as they fall due.

The Group's objeclive is to manage malturity of ils borrowing arrangements to ensure sufficient cash is available to meel liabillies as they fall
due. The Group uses (orecasts and projections by way of a delailed 12 month cash flow forecast as well 3s a five year business plan to idenlity
future cash requirements. The Group also seeks 10 reduce hiquidily sisk by fixing a proportion of ils boirowings to bring more cenamnty over
future cash flows.

The tollowing table sets out the contractual maturities {representing undiscounted contractuat cash-flows) of finarcial liabilities:

Between Between
Upto3d Jand 12 land § Moare than §
months months years years Total
'm £'m £'m £'m £'m
At 2 January 2022
Trade and other payables 47.1 - - - 47.1
Loans and dorrowings 1.7 5.8 2649 36 276.0
48.8 5.8 264.9 3.6 323.1
Between Between
Uptod 3and 12 fand 5 More than $
months months years years Toral
£'m £'m £'m £€m £'m
A1 27 December 2020
Trade and other payables 44.5 - - . 44.5
Loans and botrowings 6.8 53 2088.9 37 2847

51.3 53 268.9 3.7 3292
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28 Fair value measurement

Set out below is 3 comparison of the cafrying amounts and fair value of the Group's financial inslruments, other than those with carrying
amounts thal are reasonable approximalions of fair values by virtue of their shont-term nature:

Group 2 January 2022
Carrying amount Fair vatue
£'m Em
Financial liabilities
Secured bark ipans 2544 254.4
Leases 26 26
257.0 257.0
27 December 2020
Carrylng amount Fair vatue
£'m £'m
Financial liabilities
Secured bank loans 2574 2514
Leases . 29 29
2680.3 260.3
it has been assessed thal cash, lrade receivables and other receivables, trade payables and other payables and bank ppr y

equal their carrying amounts largely due to the short.term maturities of these instruments.

Fair value of interest rale swaps is the mark-to-market value, which is araved at using valuation techniques which emptoys the use of market
observable inputs.

The fair values of the Group's interest-bearing borrowings and loans are determined by using the OCF method using discount rate that reflects
the sssuer's borrowing rate as at the end of the reporting period.
The (oflawing table provides the far value measurement hiesarthy of the Group's assets and hiabitiies

Falr value measurement using

Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable unobservable
markets inguts Inputs
2 January 2022 {Level 1) (Level 2) {Level 3)
£€m €m £'m
Liabliities measured at falr value:
Interest rate swaps . 0.6 -
Liabilities for which falr values are disclosed:
Secured bank foans - 254.4 .
Leases - 28 .
Fair value measurement using
Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
27 December 2020 {Level 1) {Level 2) {Level 3)
E'm £'m £'m
Liabihties measured at fair value:
Interest rate swaps 89 -
Liabilities for which falr values are disclosed:
Secured bank loans - 2574
Leases . 29 .

There have been ro ransfers between fair value hierarchy levels dusing the period ended 2 January 2022 (27 December 2020. none},

a4
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29 Called up ordinary shares

2 January 27 December
2022 2020
£'m £'m
Group and Company
Authorised
1.000,000.000 (27 December 2020° 1.000.000.000) ordinary shases of £0 10 each 100.0 100.0
Group and Company
Allotted, called up and fully paid
341,000.000 (27 December 2020: 341,000.000) ordinary shares of £0.10 each 34.1 341
There are no reslrictions an the voting rights or economic rights of issued capitat
30 Reserves
Capital  Revaluation *  Accumulated
reserve reserve losses Tota!
Group £'m £m £'m £€'m
At 30 December 2019 0.2 109.7 (87.0) 229
Change in accounting policy - - {0.6) {0.6¢
Loss for tne financial year - - (34 9) {34.9)
Actuarial loss on pension scheme - - (16) (1.6}
IFRIC t4 pension scheme adjustment - (0.1) {0.1)
Tax 8n components of other comprehensive expense - - 0.2 0.2
Reserves transfec ) - {5.3) 53 .
At 27 December 2020 0.2 104.4 {118.7) {14.1)
Profit for the financial period - . 4.0 40
Actuarial gain on pension scheme - 29 29
IFRIC 14 pension scheme adjusiment - 05 S
Tax on components of other comprehensive income - - 0.7) 07}
Reserves transfer (5.3) 53 -
At 2 January 2022 0.2 99.1 (106.7) {7.4)

Reserve wransfer between the revaluation reserve and relaines earnings is in respect of excess depreciaton that has been charged in against

revalued assels

Company

At 28 December 2028
Profit for the fnancial penod

At 2 Janvary 2022

43

Retained
earnings Total
£'m £'m
92.2 922
0.3 03
92.5 92.5




ROADCHEF UIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE PERIOD ENOED 2 JANUARY 2022

3

Employee benefit schemes

Defined contribution schemes

The Group operales a number of defined contribution pension schemes The assets of these schemes are held separately from those of the
Group in independently admanistered funds. The pension charge for the period for these schemes amounted lo £0 9m (27 December 2020:
£0 9m). An amount of £0 2m {27 December 2020 £0 2m}is owed o the pension schemas al the period end.

¢

Oefined benefit schemes
Roadchef Motorways Holdings Limlited

The Group operates a defined benefit pension scheme providing benefits al reurement and on death-in-;grvice The assets of the scheme sre
held separately fcom thoge of the Group, being invasied vaith an insyrance company The most recent actuainl valuation was 31 May 2020

The scheme is closed (o new entrants and during 2013 the scheme closed to the future aceryal of benefits for aclive members Aclive members
of the schemes do not have their benelits tinked to salary.

The penslon contributions for the period m respect of this scheme were £1 1m {27 December 2020; £1 ).

The market value of the scheme's agsets as at 3+ May 2020 was £36.0m. The actuarial value of the assels as al 31 May 2020 represenied
85% of the accrued benefits, ’

The actuanal valuations described above have been updated at 2 January 2022 by a qualfied actuary using revised assumptions that are
consistent with the requirements of IAS 19 Invesiments have been valued. for this purpose, at faif va'ue. The valuation of the scheme as at 2
January 2022 ¢s 3 surplus of £4 5m (27 December 2020: £1 1m),

The major assumptions used by the actuary were:

2, Y 270 b
2022 2020
Rale of increase in 5% capped pensions in payment 3.1% 29%
Rate of increase in 2 5% capped pensions in payment 21% 21%
Discount rate ! 2.0% 14%
inflation assumpton (setad price index) 3.3% 2.9%
Inflation assumption (consumer price index)
Pre 2030 2.3% 1 9%
Post 2030 3.2% 2.8%
Sensitvily analyss {or the significant assumplions is as followss®
Efect on abligation
2 January 27 December
2022 2020
£'m £'m
Discount rate - 0.1% ncrease (0.7) {07}
inflation assumplions - 0'1% increase 04 05
Life expectancy - 1 year increase 14 15

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on the defined benefit obligation as a
result of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period The sensilivity analysis is based on a change in a
significant assumption, keeping all olher assumplions constant The sensitvily analysls may not be representative of an actual change in the
defined benefit obligation as it is unikely that changes in assumptions would occur i isatation of one another

In addition to the above financial assumplions the principal demographic assumptions used by the actuary relate t¢ past-retirement member
mortahty and are as foltows:

2 January 27 December

2022 2020

Active and deferred members S3INA + SINA +
CMI_2020 CMI_2018

with 1.25% long  with 1 25% long

term rate term sate

Pensiorurs. SINA+ SINA +
Cii_2020 CMI_2019

with 1.25% tong  with 1.25% long

term rate lerm rate
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31

Employee benefit schemes (continued)
Roadchef Motorways Holdings Limited (continued)

For the penod ended 2 January 2022 the SINA monafily tables were used with 20 aflowance for impravements n manality using CMI_2020
rates subject 10 3 1.25% long term rend rate A male member aged 45 at the accounting date wou'd be expected 1o live for another 22 5 years
ahér reaching age 65 and a male member aged 65 at lhe valuation date would be expected to live for another 21.2 years, A fema’e aged 45 al
the accounting dale would be expacted to bive for anoiher 25.2 years after reaching age 65 and a female member aged 55 at the valuation date
woutd be expected 1o tive lor another 23.8 years,

The investment of scheme assels is ged by the t of the sch The trustees’ investment objective 13 ta ensure that the plans
have adequate resources to meel their liabilines and thereafter to maximise the long-term total rate of return on the assels Invesiment risk is
managed by diversifying the assais across asset classes whose return patterns are not highly correlated

The fair value of the assets in the scheme and the present value of the tiabilities in the scheme were

2 January 27 December

2022 2020

£m £'m

Equities 31 26
Diversified growth funds 6.3 57
Bonds 227 21
Liability driven investments 6.1 7.3
Cash 0.1 0.1
Total market value of assets 38.3 368
Presenl vatue of scheme liabilties {33.8) {357)
Surplus in the scheme 4.5 11

The far value of the assels in the scheme are determined based on quoled prices in active ma-kels, including investments in pcaled
investiment funds which are unquoted. but where underlying assets of these funds are quoted

Changes in {air value of the plan assets are analysed as follows
2 January 27 December

2022 2020

£m €m

Opening fair value of scheme assets 36.8 339
Interest on plan assels 0.5 o7
Actuanal gains 1.0 22
Conuibutians by emptoyer . 1.1 i1
Expenses 02 {02)
Benefits paid (0.9) (09)
Closing fair value of scheme assets 38.3 36.8

Changes in fair value of the plan liabilies are analysed as foliows:
2 January 27 December

2022 2020

£'m £'m

Opening farr value of scheme iabitines 357 323
Interest on pension Labities 05 07
Actuariai {gains) losses (1.5) 3.6
Benefits paid (0.9) (0.9)
Closing lair value of scheme liabilities 33.8 357
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31 Employee benefit schemes (continued)
Roadchef Motorways Holdings Limited (continued)

The following entries have been made in the financial statements*

Operating profit
Expenses

Total operating charge
Other finance creditsf{charges)

Interest on plan assels
on pension liabihti

Net finance result

S t of other compreh i {OCl)

Aclual relurn less expecied retuin on pension assels

Expenence (losses) gains arsing on pension scherne habities

Changes in assumplions underlying the present value of the scheme’s liabifitres

Actuarial gain/ (l0ss) recognised an OCI

Movement in surplus in the period

Opening plan surplus
Contributions

Expenses

Actuarial gains/ (losses)

Closing plan surplus

The Group has recognised a deferred lax hability on pensions of £1.1m (27 December 2020 £0.2my

Perlod ended Year ended
2 January 27 December
2022 2020
£'m £'m
(0.2) (0.2)
10.2) (0.2
0.5 07
(0.5) 0"
Perlod ended Year ended
2 January 27 December
2022 2020
€'m £€m
1.0 22
{0.7) 05
22 {4 1)
25 (1.4
Perlod ended Yedr ended
2 January 27 Decernber
2022 2020
£m £'m
1.1 1.8
1.1 [
(0.2) 02)
25 (1.4)
4.5 11
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3N

Employee benefit schemes (continued)
Roadchef Motorways Holdings Limited {continued)

Detafs of experience gains and losses:

Period ended Year ended
2 Janvary 27 Decembes
2022 2020
£'m £'m
B eb the d and actual retura in schame assets
- amount 1.0 22
Experience (losses) gains on hadlities
- amount {0.7) 0.9
Tolal amount recognised in OCl
- amount 2.5 (14}
- as a percentage of scheme habdikties 1% 4%

As at 2 December 2022 the number of active members in the scheme was nil {27 Oecember 2020 nl) As such no contrbutons are ant:¢ipated
n respect of pensionable earnings.

Contributions in respect of the shortfall In funding, Inclusive of expenses fof the period ended 2 January 2022 were fixéd amounts of £88 833
monthly. The agreed contributon rate for the next year (s £88,833 monthly and two addilional lump sum payments 1otatag €1 7m

Should a surplus of funds be reached, the lrustees of the scheme may refund © the Group amounts held in excess of requirements giving
tonsideration 1o scheme obligations

The weighted average duration of the expected benefil payments lrom the defined benefil p h is U y 19 years.

Blue Boar Motorways Limited

Blue Boar Motarways Limited operates a defined benefn perision scheme providing benefits at setirement and on death-in-service The assets
of the scheme are held separately from those of the Group, being invesled with an insurance company. The most recent actuarial valuation was
at 31 May 2020.

The scheme is closed to naw entrants and during 2013 the scheme closed to the future accrual of benefits for aclive members. Active members
of the schemes have relained their link between benefils and salary.

The pension contibutions for the period in respect of this scheme were £0.5m (27 Oecember 2020: £0 Sm).

Tne markel value of the scheme's assets as at 31 May 2020 was £8.4m ang this was sufficient to cover 86% of the benefits that nad accrued to
members.

Tha actuanal valuations described above have been updated at 2 January 2022 by a qualified actuary using revised assumplons that are
consi with the requir of 1AS 19, Investments have been valued, for this purpose, at fair value. The valuation of the scheme as at 2
January 2022, exciuding the impact of the IFRIC 14 asset imil, is a surplus of £1.3m (27 December 2020: £0.5m).

The major assumptions used by the acluary were:
2 January 27 Oecember

2022 2020
Rate of increase in 5% capped pensions n payment 3.2% 29%
Rate of increase in 2.5% capped pensions in payment 2.1% 2.1%
Discount rate 1.9% 14%
Inflation assumplion (retail pnce index) 3.4% 29%
inflation assumplion (consumer grice index)
Pre 2030 24% 1.9%
Post 2020 3% 2.8%
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31

Employee benefit schemaes (continued)
Bilue Boar Motorways Limited {continued)
Sensitivity analysis for the sigmificant assumptions Is as follows

Eftfect on obligation
2 January 27 December

2022 2020
£m €'m
Discouni rate - 0.1% decrease ’ (0.1) 0.1)
Inflation assumptions - 0.1% increase - 0.1
Life expeciancy - | year increase 0.4 0.4

The sensitwily analyses above have been delermined based on 8 melhod thal extrapolates the impact on the defined benefit obligation as a
result of reasonable changes in key assumptions occuriing at the end of the reporting penod The sensutivity analysis is based on a change in 3
significant assumption keeping all other assumptians constant. The sensitivity analysis may not be representative of an actual change in the
defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that changes in assumptions would occur n Isolation of one another

In addiion to the financial assumplions, the principal demograph:c assumplions used by the actuary relale 10 posi-relirement member monality.

2 January 27 December

2022 2020

Active and deferred members . S3NA ¢ SINA +
CMI_2020 CMI_2019

with 1.25% long  with 1.25% long

term rate term rate

Pensioners SINA + SINA +
CMmI_2020 CMi_2019

with 1.25% tong  with 1.25% long

term rate term rate

For the period ended 2 January 2022 the SINA montality tables were used with an a'lowance far improvements in monatity using CM1_2020
rates subject 10 a 1.25% long term rend rate A male member aged 45 at the acccunling date would be expected 1o live for another 22.5 years
after reaching age 65 and a male member aged 65 al the vatyaton date would be expetted 1o live fof another 21.2 years. A female aged 45 al
the accounbing date would be expected to live for another 25 2 years alfter reaching age 65 and a female member aged 65 a3l the valualion date
would be expected to live for another 23 8 years.

The (nvestment of scheme assets is managed by the trustees of the scheme The trusiees invesimeny objective is 10 ensure that the plans
have adequate resources to meet their liabdilies and thereafter to maximise the long-term 1013] rate of return on the assels. Investment risk is
managed by diversifying (he assels across asset classes whose return pallerns are not highly correlated

The fair value of the assets in the szheme and the present value of the liabrlities in the scheme ware

2 January 27 December

2022 2020

£€m £m

Equities . - 0.7

GARS 1.1 1.3

Bonds 58 5.7

Liabsity diiven invesiment 0.8 09

Cash 1.4 0.1

Totat market vatue of assets 88 8.7
Present value of scheme kabihiies ) (1.5) {8.2)
IFRtC 14 impact - (0.5)

Surplus in the scheme 1.3 -

The fair vaiue of the assets in the scheme are determined bazed on quoled prices in active markels, including investments in pooted
investment funds which ace unquoted, but where underlying assets of these funds are quoted
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31  Employee benefit schemes {continued)
Blue Boar Motorways Limited {continued)

Changes in far value of the plan assels are analysed 3z fodows”

2 Janvary 27 December
2022 2020
£€m £'m
Opening fair value of scheme assets 8.7 8.2
Interest on plan assets 0.1 0.1
Actuarial (lossesy gains {0.1) 0.4
Contributions by employer 0.5 05
Benelfits paid {0.3) (0.9)
Expenses : (0.1} {0.1)
Closing fair value of scheme assets 8.8 87
Changes in fair value of the plan habilites are analysed as (ollows,
2 January 27 December
2022 2020
£'m £m
Opening far value of scheme hiabilties 8.2 79
Interest on pension habiliues 0.1 0t
Actuanal (gainsy losses {0.5) 06
Benefits pa:d (0.3) (04)
Closing fair value of scheme liabdities 7.5 8,2
Movement in IFRIC 14 assel limit are as follows;
2J) Y 270 b
2022 2020
€m £'m
Opening asset limat 0.5 04
Movement (0.5} 0.1
Closing assel hmit - 0.5
The following entries bave been made n the financial statements
Period ended Year ended
2 January 27 December
2022 2020
£'m £m
Cperating profit
Expenses (0.1) (0.1)
Total operating charge . {0.1) {0.1)
Other finance charges
interest on plan assets 0.1 o1t
Interest on penston labilities (0.1} {on
Net finance result - -
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31 Employee benefit schemes (continued)

Blue Boar Motorways Limited {continued)

Statement of other comprehensive income (OCl)

Actual return less expected return on pension assels

Experience gain arising on pension scheme habilies

Changes in assumplions underlying the present value of the scheme’s hiabilties
IFRIC 14 impact

Actuarial gaind {loss} cecagmsed in OCL

Movement in surplus/ (deficit) in Ihe period

Opening plan deficit
Contributions
Operaling expenses
Actuariat losses
Closing plan surplus

The Group has recognised a deferred tax liability on pensions of £0 3m {27 December 2020 £nil§

Oetails of experience gains and losses:

Ditference between the expecied and actual retumin scheme assels’
- amount

Experience gains on liabiities
- amount

Tolal amount recogmsed in OCt
- amount

-asap of sch

g

Perlod endad Year ended
2 January 27 December
2022 2020
£m £'m
(0.1) 0.4
. 01
0.5 (0.7)
0.5 (0.1}
0.9 {0.3)
Period ended Year ended
2 January 27 December
2022 2020
£'m £'m
- {0.1)
0.5 0.5
(0.1) (0.1}
6.8 {0.3)
1.3 -
Period ended Year ended
2 January 27 December
2022 2020
£'m m
(0.1) 04
- 0.1
0.9 9.3)
(12)% 4%

As at 2 January 2022 the number of active membets in the scheme was nil (27 December 2020: nif). As such no contrbulions are anticipated in

respect of pensionable earnings.

Contributions in respect of the shonfall in funding. inclusive of expenses. for the period ended 2 January 2022 were amounts of £38.917

monthly. The agreed contribution rate for the next year is £38.917 monthly.

The weighted average duration of the expected benefil payments from the defined benefi pension scheme 15 approximately 15 years

&2
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32 Financlal commitments

3

M4

The Group receives rental income on several forecourts leased to third parties under non-cancellable operating leases. The totaj contingent
renls recognised as income during the period is £7.4m (27 Oscembar 2020: £6.0m) Contingen! rentals are hnked to the sales and gross
margin performance of lessees Future minimum rentals receivabdle under non-cancelfable operating leases are as follows.

2 Januvary 27 December

" 2022 2020

Land and Ltand and

buildings buitdings

E'm £m

V/ithin one year 09 09
Between one and five years s 35
After more than five years 10.0 109
14.4 15.3

Post balance sheet events

On 7 April 2022 the Group and Company repa‘d s bank borrowings. New bank borrowings of £270.0m have been oblained by an inlermediate
parent company. which are secured over the assets of the Group ang are repayable in 2027. As a resuit, existing unamortised finance costs of
£2 1m have been charged to finance costs after the reporting date.

Directors’ advances

5

The Company has made avatable interesl-free (0ans to the directars Annual rapayment of the utiised loan amounts is required with finas
seltlement of {he loan required by 30 September 2024. Movements in the !0an balances are as follows:

29 December 27 December 2 January

2019 Repayments 2020 Repayments 2022

£000°s £000's £000's €000's £000's

M Fox 13 (38) 75 B 75
S Turt* 75 . 75 . 75
I McKay 45 . - 45 . 45
R Findate 80 (38) 42 - 42
3 Mulrhead 62 {31} 31 . k)
37s (107) 268 - 268

* Non-executive directar of a group ccmpany
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as

36

37

38

Related party disclosures

15y addit:on to transactions with directars, disclosed w notes 9 and 34, the folioving refated party transactions and balarces have occurred:

Group

Amounts owed
to
related parties
£'m

Parent entity
Roadchef Bidco Limited 2 January 2022 33.0
27 December 2020 330

Contingent liabilities

Along with other group compames, the Company has guaranteed the bank loans and overdralts of certain fellow group companes The
aggregate amgunt outstanding as &l 2 Janvary 2022 was £127.300.000 (27 Oecember 2020 £127,300.000). Tre directors consider the
likelihoad of any financial fiab.ty arisifig ¥ respect of these to be remote,

The Group makes contingent rent payments as disclosed in note 24

Control
The immediate parent company is Roadchef Bidco Limited, @ campany registered in England and Wales. Copies of these financial statements
can be obtained from Companies House, Crown Way. Maindy, Cardiff, CF14 3U2

The targest and smallest group in whieh the resufiz gf the Graup are consolidaled s that headed by Roadche! Topco Limited. a company
registered in England and Wales. Copies of these financial statements can be obtaned from Companies House. Crown Way Maindy, Card:#(,
CF14 302

As at 2 January 2022, Antin Infrastructure Partners Luxembourg Il S.a.r.l is considered 10 be the ultimate controfling party. a company

registered in Luxembourg On 17 Marctr 2022 the ultimate controlling party of the Company changed from Antin Infrastructure Pariners.
Luxembourg Il S a.rito Macquarie European Infrastructure Fund 6 SCSp. a fund registered :n Luxembourg

Net cash inflow from operating actlvities

Group

Period ended Year ended

2 January 27 December

2022 2020

£'m 'm
Operatirg profiv {loss) 15.7 (20.0)
Amortisation of intangibte assets 0.5 0.5
Depreciation of property. plant and equipment 25.8 26.8
Amortisation of deferced revenue . (0.7) {0.7)
Non-cash exceptional items {0.6) 1.3
Difference between pension charge and cash contribution {1.3) {13)
{tncreaseY decrease n inventories {0.9) 05
(bncrease) dectease n receivadles {1.4) 19
increase! (decrease) in payables k¥ 22)
Net corporation tax paid {0.5) {0 4)

Net cash inflow from operating actwvites 8.6 64
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39 Net debi reconciliation

Group

2 January 271 Decewmber

2022 2020

£'m £'m

Cash and cash equwalents 304 184
Secured bank loans (gross of finance costs aliocaled to future periods) (256.5) (260 3)
Leases (2.8) (29)
Net debt {228.7) (248.8)

Secured bank laans
{gross of inance costs
Cash and cash altocoled to fulure

aquivatents periods)  Unsscured loans Leases Totat

£'m £m £'m £m £'m
Net debt at 30 December 2039 163 {246 8) (0.3} {174 (232,5}

Adjustment for change in

accounting pokey - - - (21t {21}

Cash Rows 0.1 0 - - [R]

Repayment of borrowings . - 0.3 20 23
New borrowings {cash} - {13.5}) - - (13 5)
New (eases (non-caah) » - - {1.%) {(11)
Net debdt at 27 December 2020 16.4 (260.3) B (2.9) {246.8)

Cash flows 140 - . . 140

Repayment of borrowings . 50 . 1.0 60
New borrowings (cash) 1.2) - - (1.2}

Early termination of leases {prncash) - . . 01 01
New teases (non-cash) - . - (0.8) {0.8)
Net debl at 2 January 2022 30.4 {256.5) - (2.6) {228.7)




